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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) (formerly known as Sing On Holdings Limited) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018 (the “Financial Year 2018”).

The Group is an established subcontractor engaged in concrete
demolition works for more than 30 years. The concrete demolition
industry is one of the specific areas of the construction industry
which mainly concerns the removal of pieces or sections of
concrete from concrete structures and the demolition of the entire
concrete structures or buildings.

On 12 June 2018, the Company transferred its listing of shares
from the GEM to the Main Board (the “Main Board”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Transfer of Listing”). We believe the Transfer of Listing will
strengthen the Group’s position in the industry and enhance the
Group’s competitive strengths. It is also beneficial to the future
growth, financing flexibility and business development of the Group
which will create a long-term value to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”).

For the Financial Year 2018, the Group has experienced a
decrease in turnover of approximately 20.8% as compared to the
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Financial
Year 2017”). Such decrease was primarily due to the completion
of several large scale jobs during the Financial Year 2018 in which
the largest job contributed approximately HK$30.5 million during
the Financial Year 2017.

The Group’s profits attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately HK$4.8 million from approximately
HK$25.0 million for the Financial Year 2017 to approximately
HK$20.2 million for the Financial Year 2018, the decrease in
profits attributable to owners of the Company included the effect
of the non-recurring expenses of approximately HK$1.9 million
incurred by the Transfer of Listing during the Financial Year 2018.
Excluding the non-recurring expenses incurred by activities outside
the ordinary and usual course of our business, the Group’s profits
attributable to owners of the Company would be approximately
HK$22.1 million for the Financial Year 2018.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect and
appreciation to my fellow Board members, management team
and staff members for their continued effort to our Group’s
development and build value to our customers. We are optimistic
about the prospects of the construction market. With our
experienced management team and decades of valuable project
experience, we are convinced that we can expand our operation
scale and maximise returns to our shareholders.

Cheung Shek On
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group’s principal activity is the provision of concrete demolition
service in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a subcontractor. Our
services are mainly required in the removal of pieces or sections
of concrete from concrete structures and the demolition of the
entire concrete structures or buildings by applying a variety of
methods, such as core drilling, sawing and crushing. Our services
are required in many different situations including, among others,
addition and alteration works and redevelopment projects in
buildings, roads, tunnels and underground facilities.

We have been operating in the concrete demolition industry in
Hong Kong since 1985. We have also been providing concrete
demolition services in Macau since 2006. We are a registered
subcontractor for general demolition and others (concrete coring
and saw cutting) works under the Subcontractor Registration
Scheme of the Construction Industry Council and a Registered
Minor Works Contractor at the Buildings Department.

In general, our customers are main contractors in various types
of construction and civil engineering projects in Hong Kong and
construction projects in Macau. We undertake jobs in both public
and private sectors. Public sector jobs refer to jobs which the
main contractors are employed by the Hong Kong Government,
the Macau Government or their respective related organisations
or corporations, while private sector jobs refer to jobs that are not
public sector jobs.

Looking forward, the Directors consider that the future
opportunities and challenges facing the Group will continue
to be affected by the development of the policies of the Hong
Kong Government as well as factors affecting the labour costs
and material costs. According to the 2019-2020 Budget of the
Hong Kong Government, the annual capital works expenditure
is expected to rise to over HK$100 billion in the next few years.
The amount was mainly derived from infrastructure investments
especially for the construction of public and private housing,
implementation of hospital development and redevelopment
projects, development and expansion of new towns and new
development areas, as well as construction of a third runway for
the airport. The Directors believe that the availability of private
and public sector construction projects is expected to grow in the
coming years, and with our experienced management team and
reputation in the market, we can further strengthen our position as
an established concrete demolition service provider.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Financial Year 2018, all of our Group’s revenue was
derived from concrete demolition business in Hong Kong and
Macau. The Group’s revenue for the Financial Year 2018 was
approximately HK$147.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 20.8% from approximately HK$186.2 million for
the Financial Year 2017. Such decrease was mainly due to the
completion of several large scale jobs in which the largest job
contributed approximately HK$30.5 million during the Financial
Year 2017.

BEE W&

EBOERRE

AEBTIZEBDEIEERD BRNEEBPMRERLTHF
HART - AR IR = BB BRASE L BN EE LT
P& Ko SH 1 6 B R RE L A5 1R W O DR BE £ 1R S AR 1 M AR D R
BRI EEYSGREY - HANRBERRZBETRNER
HbEmERSGETE  URET 85  BE R TRIE
WEBREIER -

AEEE-NN\AFRE-—ERBBRRLIFHTELE B
TEANERE  RATRORMA—ER{ERLHREHRSE - A% H
RRBEEZSED SR EMEE THE—MRIFE KA (&
HORR LT RIE) TRENEMD BB LR AETE M)
B TARAGERS ©

—&mE  BRANEFPASBEEZHEERLIATIERAR - UK
RPTEEETIZIR A WAFGER - RPIARRE RALERBINER -
RNERPIERBEAEPRABTBBN RFIRFES B MNH
PREREERMHAOTE  MWERFEBEIERERHIAR -

REERIR - BH R B R 2R BT [ [ B0 e 38 0 B B i M R 2
BB BT B TE RO SR A e 572 B 85 TR AR R i it AR AN ) (R R FT 2
B2 -REFBRN T - NE-_T_TERNURBEER &
HARARBFEFEEATREMAHEEEIB1,0008ETT ° %K
RIBREERRERE  LEERERERLEREE Bt
BRERNMEZER  ZREEEFTHATERRE - AR
BERSE=(RBE - EFERR LERDERFEREAR
ERANAKBFERAER - BELRE T R E KRB
MG LR - AR — SR B AFIERABIRR LI H
BRA% L e R RO iz

Pt %5 (ol R

REZZE—N\FHREE  AEBHAERZHREETS RN
BRITIFHES -AEBR - NFHREENKRZELD B
14748 BB T BT —tFUBRFELH1862EE B TR D
#4920.8% c ZRMAIETEZARBERABBE T IR EF R =
Tt FUBRFERAHE ERMA05BEBTT °

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE

5



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

Our Group’s gross profit decreased from approximately HK$55.5
million for the Financial Year 2017 to approximately HK$51.7
million for the Financial Year 2018, while the gross profit margin for
our Group increased from approximately 29.8% for the Financial
Year 2017 to approximately 35.1% for the Financial Year 2018.
Such increase was mainly due to the decrease of machine rental
cost, transportation cost and subcontracting charges as a result of
the using of the newly purchased machines and vehicles.

Administrative and other operating expenses increased by
HK$3.4 million (representing an increase of approximately 13.6%)
to HK$28.4 million for the Financial Year 2018, compared with
approximately HK$25.0 million for the Financial Year 2017, which
mainly due to the non-recurring legal and other professional fees
for the Transfer of Listing amounted to approximately HK$1.9
million and the increase in rental expense. Net profit decreased by
HK$4.8 million to approximately HK$20.2 million in the Financial
Year 2018 compared to HK$25.0 million in the Financial Year 2017
(representing a decrease of approximately 19.2%) as a result of
the simultaneous occurrence of the factors in the Financial Year
2018 as discussed above. By excluding the aforementioned non-
recurring legal and other professional fees, the Group’s profits
attributable to owners of the Company would be approximately
HK$22.1 million for the Financial Year 2018.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 7.4 (31 December 2017: approximately 5.8).
The Group had total assets of approximately HK$147.7 million,
which is financed by total liabilities and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$19.9 million and HK$127.8 million, respectively.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$26.5 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$36.4 million).

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and
borrowings divided by total equity as at the respective reporting
date. As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any loans
or borrowings (31 December 2017: Nil) and therefore no gearing
ratio is present.

Capital Expenditure

During the Financial Year 2018, there was capital expenditure of
approximately HK$6.8 million which was used in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, compared to HK$9.6 million for the
Financial Year 2017.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach in capital management
towards its treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the Financial Year 2018. The share capital of the Group
only comprises of ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2018,
the Company’s issued share capital was HK$6,720,000 and the
number of its issued ordinary shares was 672,000,000 of HK$0.01
each.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred
most of the costs in Hong Kong dollars for the Financial Year
2018, there was no significant exposure to foreign exchange rate
fluctuations and the Group had not maintained any hedging policy
against the foreign currency risk.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Availability of construction and civil engineering projects in
Hong Kong and Macau

Our results of operations are affected by the number and
availability of construction and civil engineering projects from the
public and private sectors in Hong Kong and construction projects
from the private sector in Macau, which in turn are affected by
various factors, including but not limited to the general economic
conditions in Hong Kong and Macau, changes in government
policies relating to the Hong Kong and Macau property markets,
the general conditions of the property markets in Hong Kong and
Macau, and the amount of investment in the construction of new
infrastructure and improvement of existing infrastructure.

In the event that the availability of concrete demolition jobs
decreases as a result of the decrease in the number of private
and/or public sector projects in Hong Kong and/or Macau, our
businesses and results of operations may be adversely and
materially affected.

Our business is subject to the risk of cost overrun and job
extension or delay

In pricing a tender or quotation, we are required to estimate the job
costs based on various factors such as (i) the estimated number
and types of workers required; (i) the estimated number and types
of machineries required; and (i) the need for subcontracting and
machinery leasing. Any deviation between the estimated cost
by the time we submit the tenders or quotations and the actual
costs to complete the jobs may adversely affect our financial
performance and profitability. For instance, if the actual progress of
a project was slower than we anticipated, or if there is any delay or
extension in the project schedule of main contractor, we may have
to engage subcontractors and/or lease the required machineries
for a longer period, and hence the amounts of subcontracting
fees or machinery rental cost incurred may exceed our estimation.
Further, in the case of job extension or delay, we may experience
decrease in revenue derived given that the progress payment to
us is based on works done by us on a monthly basis. There is no
assurance that we would not experience cost overrun and job
extension or delay, which may in turn adversely affect our profit
margin and operating results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

Issue of Labour Shortage

The construction industry, including the concrete demolition
industry in Hong Kong and Macau has been facing the issue of
labour shortage. The growing demand for construction works
exacerbated the shortage issue and has been pushing up the daily
wage of worker in concrete demolition industry in Hong Kong and
Macau.

If our Group is unable to recruit or retain sufficient workers or fails
to effectively manage our staff costs as a result of shortage of local
labour supply, our business operations and financial performance
may be materially and adversely affected.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

We have established long-term relationships with a number of our
customers who are primarily main contractors in the construction
industry. The Company is of the view that a good relationship with
customers, concrete demolition contracting service providers have
an advantage in gaining new and repeated business. Therefore,
our Directors believe that main contractors generally give priority to
subcontractors with whom they are familiar and who have a proven
track record in providing quality concrete demolition works in a
timely manner. We are of the view that our long-term relationships
with @ number of our customers are our competitive advantages
that cannot be easily replicated by other concrete demolition works
subcontractors, and have enabled and will continue to enable us
to differentiate ourselves in the industry in Hong Kong and Macau.

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the Financial Year 2018, our suppliers and subcontractors
mainly consisted of lessors of machinery, suppliers of consumables
and machinery parts, and transportation, courier service providers
and subcontractors of concrete demolition works. We have
established long-term relationships with a number of our suppliers.
We believe our established relationships with these suppliers and
subcontractors have been enabling us to take up jobs of various
scale and service type and fulfill our customers’ requirements.
This could also ensure stable and timely delivery of materials or
services from these suppliers, which in turn shall minimise potential
disruption to our works.

Employees

Our Directors consider that we have maintained good relationship
with our employees in general. We had not experienced any
significant problems with our employees or any disruption to our
operations due to labour disputes nor had we experienced any
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff or
skilled personnel during the Financial Year 2018.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 109 full-time employees as at 31 December 2018
(81 December 2017: 112 full-time employees). The staff costs,
including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group were approximately
HK$39.8 million for the Financial Year 2018 as compared to
HK$47.9 million for the Financial Year 2017.

Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wage rates are usually
subjected to an annual review that are based on performance
appraisals and other relevant factors. The Group strongly
encourages internal promotion and a variety of job opportunities
is offered to the existing staff when it is best suited. Remuneration
package is comprised of salary, a performance-based bonus, and
other benefits including training and provident funds.

COMMITMENTS

The contractual commitments of the Group were primarily related
to the leases of its office and warehouse premises and the
Director’s quarter. The Group’s operating lease commitments
amounted to approximately HK$3.4 million as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: approximately HK$4.4 million). As at
31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitment (31
December 2017: approximately HK$2.8 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, there was no significant contingent
liabilities for the Group (31 December 2017: Nil).

CHARGE OVER OUR GROUP’S ASSETS

A pledged deposit of HK$10.1 million has been reserved to satisfy
our potential customers’ requirement for performance bond.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no significant
investment, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies by the Company during the Financial Year
2018.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other
plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31 December
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the
Financial Year 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 22 November 2016 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and
Appendix 14 (together the “CG Codes”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, nominate and monitor external auditors
and to provide advices and comments to the Board on matters
related to corporate governance. The Audit Committee consists of
three members, namely Mr. Chow Chun To, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang
Kenny and Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Financial
Year 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Financial Year 2018 comply with
applicable accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the
Listing Rules and that adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in
the CG Codes. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the CG Codes during the Financial Year 2018
except the following deviation:

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheung Shek On is the
Chairman and the chief executive officer of our Company. In view
that Mr. Cheung has been operating and managing our Group
since our establishment, our Board believes that it is in the best
interest of our Group to have Mr. Cheung taking up both roles for
effective management and business development. In addition,
major decisions are made after consultation with the Board and
appropriate Board committees, as well as senior management.
The Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure the balance of power and authority
within the Company.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor any
of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the Financial Year 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

In relation to the deed of non-competition dated 22 November
2016 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) given by Sino Continent
Holdings Limited, Supreme Voyage Limited, Mr. Cheung Shek On
and Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (each the “Covenantor”) in favour of the
Company and its subsidiaries, each of the Covenantor has made
an annual declaration to the Company that during the Financial
Year 2018, the Covenantor has complied with the terms of the
Deed of Non-Competition given in favour of the Company including
but not limited to:

(i) as long as the Deed of Non-Competition remains effective,
he/it shall not, and shall procure that his/its close associates
(other than any member of the Group), among other things,
not to carry on or be engaged, concerned with or interested
in or otherwise be involved in directly or indirectly, in any
business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the then existing business activity of any member of
the Group within Hong Kong, Macau and such other parts
of the world where any member of the Group may operate
from time to time, save for the holding of not more than
5% shareholding interests (individually or with his/its close
associates) in any company listed on a recognised stock
exchange and at any time the relevant listed company
shall have at least one shareholder (individually or with his/
its close associates, if applicable) whose shareholding
interests in the relevant listed company is higher than that
of the relevant Covenantor (individually or with his/its close
associates); and

(ii) he/it shall provide all information necessary for the annual
review as is reasonably required by the Group, as a basis
to decide whether to exercise the right of first refusal by the
Company from time to time.

The independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have also
reviewed the status of compliance by each of the Covenantors
with the undertakings stipulated in the Deed of Non-Competition
and have confirmed that, as far as the INEDs can ascertain, there
is no breach of any of such undertakings.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors (the
“Code of Conduct”) in respect of the shares of the Company.
The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all
Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in the Code of Conduct
during the Financial Year 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEN WKk D

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information of Directors are set out below:

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Combest Holdings Limited (stock code: 8190)
in February 2018.

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend payment of final dividend to the
shareholders for the Financial Year 2018.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Shek On (ik # &), aged 57, is one of our
controlling shareholders, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Group. He joined our Group since its
establishment in 1985, and has been a director of Kingland
Concrete Drilling Company Limited since 16 July 1985 (except
for the periods from 16 August 1989 to 30 November 1989 and
from 31 March 2005 to 30 June 2005). Mr. Cheung is responsible
for the overall management and administration of our business
operations. He is also a director of Platinum Faith Limited, Alpha
Eastern Holdings Limited and Kingland (Sino) Company Limited.
Mr. Cheung has more than 30 years of experience in the concrete
demolition industry.

Mr. CHAN Yuk Sing (Ff % i), aged 60, is one of our controlling
shareholders, a co-founder of our Group and an executive
Director. He is responsible for the overall business development
and financial and strategic planning of our Group. He is also a
director of Kingland (Sino) Company Limited.

Mr. Chan has more than 30 years of experience in the concrete
demolition industry. He co-founded our Group in 1985, and has
been a director of Kingland Concrete Drilling Company Limited
since 16 July 1985.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. KUAN Hong Kin Daniel (B8 E ), aged 28, has joined our
Group as a non-executive Director since August 2016. Mr. Kuan
is responsible for providing legal advice on our Group’s legal
compliance matters.

Mr. Kuan was admitted as a barrister in Hong Kong in March
2014. He obtained from The Chinese University of Hong Kong a
bachelor’s degree in law in November 2012 and the Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in July 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang Kenny (BR %% 4 ), aged 54, has joined our
Group as an independent non-executive Director since November
2016. He is responsible for providing independent judgment on
our strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Chan has more than 25 years of experience in accounting,
taxation, auditing and corporate finance. He is a partner and
founder of Kenny Chan & Co., a Certified Public Accountant firm.

Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor’s degree of commerce from The
University of New South Wales in Australia. He has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
February 1992.

Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director
of CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co., Limited (formerly known
as TSC Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 206), Minsheng
Education Group Company Limited (stock code: 1569),
Zhongyuan Bank Company Limited (stock code: 1216) and Hebei
Construction Group Corporation Limited (stock code: 1727), all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan was an
independent non-executive director of Combest Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8190) from February 2002 to February 2018.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEE ZBEFS

Mr. CHOW Chun To (3% %), aged 35, has joined our Group as
an independent non-executive Director since November 2016. He
is responsible for providing independent judgment on our strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Chow has more than 11 years of experience in accounting
and auditing. He worked at PCP CPA Limited as an accountant
[l from June 2006 to June 2007. He then joined HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng (currently known as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited) as an accountant | in June 2007 until December 2007.
In February 2008, Mr. Chow joined Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as an associate and was promoted to a senior in October 2008
until he left the company in April 2011. Mr. Chow worked as a
financial manager at Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited (stock code: 976), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, between
May 2011 and May 2013. He then worked as a financial controller
at JC Group Holdings Limited (currently known as Tonking New
Energy Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8326), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, from May 2013
to September 2014. Mr. Chow worked as the financial controller
at In Construction Holdings Limited (stock code: 1500), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange, between
September 2014 and February 2017. He was an independent non-
executive director of Geotech Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1707)
from September 2017 to January 2019. Mr. Chow is currently an
independent non-executive director of AV Promotions Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8419).

Mr. Chow obtained a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006 and
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since July 2013.

Mr. YAM Chiu Fan Joseph ({E# M), aged 64, has joined our
Group as an independent non-executive Director since November
2016. He is responsible for providing independent judgment on
our strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Yam has served the Hong Kong Police Force for over 32 years.
He joined the Royal Hong Kong Police (currently known as the
Hong Kong Police Force) as a probationary inspector in 1977. He
was promoted to a senior inspector and a chief inspector in 1987
and November 1990, respectively. He was further promoted to a
superintendent in June 2004. Mr. Yam has retired from the Hong
Kong Police Force in December 2009 and subsequently joined
Hong Yip Service Co. Ltd. as the head of security in June 2010.
Mr. Yam also joined Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited as
a director in November 2015. Prime Intelligence Solutions Group
Limited is a solution provider of biometrics identification systems
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. Mr. Yam was an independent
non-executive director of Cloud Investment Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8129), the issued shares of which were listed on the Stock
Exchange and were delisted since March 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Mr. MAK Banna (Z & H), aged 55, is the chief technical officer
of our Group principally responsible for the overall operation of
our concrete demolition business including tendering and work
processing, quality control and work safety supervision. Mr. Mak
first joined our Group in July 1996 as a project manager and was
subsequently promoted to the current position in December 2012.
Mr. Mak is also a director of Kingland (Sino) Company Limited and
Kingland Concrete Drilling Company Limited.

Mr. Mak has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed, among
others, by (i) Hsin Chong Construction Co., Ltd. from July 1985 to
May 1988 with his last position as a contract coordinator; and (i)
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited after he resigned from Hsin
Chong Construction Co., Ltd. and up to February 1995 with his
last position as a senior project manager.

Mr. Mak obtained a diploma in Building Studies from the Technical
Education and Industrial Training Department Hong Kong in July
1982. He received a higher diploma in Building Technology and
Management and an associateship in Building Technology and
Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known
as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1984
and November 1985 respectively. He completed a course on
Construction Safety conducted by the Industrial Safety Training
Centre of the Labour Department, Hong Kong in November
1985. He also obtained a diploma in Construction Management
from the Construction Industry Training Authority in October
1991. He completed the Lead Assessor Examination organised
by BSI Quality Assurance in October 1992 and a master degree
in Construction Management from the City University of Hong
Kong in November 2001. He was awarded the certificate of Metal
Scaffold Erecting and Dismantling Supervision Training Course
from the Construction Industry Training Authority (currently known
as the Construction Industry Training Board) in May 2004, and
the certificate of an Introductory Course on Conservation of Built
Heritage from the Construction Industry Council Training Academy
in June 2008.

Mr. Mak has been a member of the Chartered Institute of Building
since May 1995 and a member of the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers since June 1995. He was registered as a Registered
Professional Engineer in September 1998.

Mr. CHEN Yeung Tak (BR{J1%&), aged 34, has joined our Group
as a financial controller and company secretary since March
2015. He is mainly responsible for our financial reporting, financial
planning, treasury, financial control and company secretarial
matters.

Mr. Chen has over 12 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Chen was employed, among others, by (i) Fung, Yu & Co. CPA
Limited from July 2006 to December 2010 with his last position
as an assistant manager; (ii) Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as a
senior auditor from January 2011 to October 2012; and (iii) PYI
Corporation Limited (stock code: 0498), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
February 2013 to February 2015 with his last position as an
accounting manager. Mr. Chen is currently an independent non-
executive director of AV Promotions Holdings Limited (stock code:
8419) and Gain Plus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8522).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEE ZBEFS

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy (Honours)
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006.
Mr. Chen has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 2011.

Mr. YIP Wai Man (# {& X), aged 49, has joined our Group
as a sales manager since January 1995. Mr. Yip is principally
responsible for the overall operation of our marketing and customer
relationship activities, and procurement of plant and machinery.

Mr. Yip has over 25 years of experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, he was employed, among
others, by (i) Chen Hsong Foundry Co., Ltd. from August 1990
to September 1990 as a summer engineer trainee; (i) Coleman
Engineering Co (Hong Kong) Ltd from October 1991 to July 1993
as a sales engineer; and (i) Mason S. & E. Co. Ltd. from October
1994 to December 1995 as a sales executive.

Mr. Yip obtained a higher diploma in Mechanical Engineering
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1991. He was awarded the
certificate of completion of Metal Scaffold Erecting and Dismantling
Supervision Training Course by the Construction Industry Training
Authority in May 2004. He has also obtained the Construction
Industry Safety Training Certificate from the Construction Industry
Council in May 2013 and the Certificate of Certified Worker from
the Hong Kong Human Resources Ltd. in January 2014.

Ms. TSU Fung Ling (&R Bl3%), aged 52, first joined our Group as
an administrative manager in April 1994 and left in January 2005.
She has rejoined our Group as consultant from September 2014
to November 2014 and became the administrative manager of our
Group since December 2014. Ms. Tsu is principally responsible for
the overall administration of our business operations.

Prior to joining us, Ms. Tsu was employed, among others, by (i)
Argos Engineering & Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. from April 1988 to
March 1993 as a senior accounts clerk; and (i) the Dynasty Club
Limited from April 1993 to April 1994 as a supervisor.

Ms. Tsu obtained the certificates of Higher Accounting and Third
Level Cost Accounting from the London Chamber of Commerce
and Industry Examinations Board in 1986 and 1990 respectively.

Mr. TAI Cheuk Fung (& £ &), aged 36, is a Deputy General
Foreman of our Group who mainly responsible for overall site
operation. He joined our Group as a foreman since February 2012.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tai was employed, among others,
by Chong Shing Construction & Engineering Co., Ltd. as site
foreman from August 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Tai obtained
a diploma in Civil Engineering and a higher diploma in Civil
Engineering from the Vocational Training Council in July 2003 and
July 2010 respectively. He also completed a Construction Safety
Supervisor Course held by the Construction Industry Training
Authority (currently known as the Construction Industry Training
Board) in July 2006.
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The Board is pleased to present hereby the corporate governance
report of the Company for the Financial Year 2018.

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long term
and continuing success of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures
for the best interest of the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The CG Codes set out the principles of good corporate
governance, code provisions and recommended best practices.
Issuers are expected to comply with the code provisions or devise
their own code on corporate governance on the terms they
consider appropriate provided that considered reasons are given.
Throughout the Financial Year 2018, the Company had complied
with the applicable code provisions of the CG Codes with the
exception of the deviation from code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 as
explained below:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Codes requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
not performed by the same individual. In view that Mr. Cheung
Shek On has been operating and managing our Group since our
establishment in 1985, our Board believes that it is in the best
interest of our Group to have Mr. Cheung taking up both roles for
effective management and business development. Accordingly,
our Company has not segregated the roles of its chairman and
chief executive officer as required by code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Codes. Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Codes requires that
independent non-executive directors and other nonexecutive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Kuan Hong
Kin Daniel (a non-executive Director) did not attend the general
meetings held during the Financial Year 2018 because he had
other commitment on the dates of the general meetings. Mr. Yam
Chiu Fan Joseph (an independent non-executive Director) did not
attend the annual general meeting held during the Financial Year
2018 because he had other commitment on the date of the annual
general meeting. Except for code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the
CG Codes, our Company’s corporate governance practices have
complied with the CG Codes during the Financial Year 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. The management is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for
the management and administration of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board
committees of the Company (the “Board Committees”). Further
details of the Board Committees are set out in this report.
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Composition of the Board

Up to the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
including two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three INEDs. In particular, the composition of the Board is set out
as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the
Board and Compliance Officer)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kuan Hong Kin Daniel
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny
Mr. Chow Chun To
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules and rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Board consisted of three INEDs during the Financial
Year 2018, with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. During the Financial Year 2018 and as of
the date of this report, the number of INEDs represents more than
one-third of the Board as required under the GEM Listing Rules
and the Listing Rules. As such, there is a strong independent
element in the Board to provide independent judgement.

FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board supervises the management of the business and
affairs of the Company and ensures that it is managed in the
best interests of the Shareholders as a whole while taking into
account the interest of other stakeholders. The Board is primarily
responsible for formulating the business strategy, reviewing and
monitoring the business performance of the Group, approving
the financial statements and annual budgets as well as directing
and supervising the management of the Company. Execution
of operational matters and the powers thereof are delegated to
the management by the Board with clear directions. The Board
is regularly provided with management update report to give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the performance,
position, recent development and prospect of the Group in
sufficient details.

The Board has reviewed and discussed the corporate governance
policy of the Group and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
corporate governance policy.

With the various experience of both the executive Directors and
the INEDs and in view of the nature of the Group’s business, the
Board considered that the Directors have a balance of skills and
experience for the business of the Group.
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TERMS OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Director, namely Mr. Kuan Hong Kin Daniel, has
entered into letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 22 November 2016, which may be
terminated earlier by no less than one month written notice served
by either party on the other.

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of
the INEDs. The commencement date of each of the letter of
appointment is 22 November 2016 for a term of three years, which
may be terminated earlier by no less than one month written notice
served by either party on the other.

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

Specific enquiry has been made by the Company to each of
the INEDs to confirm their independence pursuant to rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received positive confirmations from all three INEDs.
Based on the confirmations received, the Company considers all
the INEDs to be independent under the GEM Listing Rules and the
Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD

Mr. Cheung Shek On and Mr. Chan Yuk Sing are the executive
Directors and the controlling shareholders with the meaning
ascribed thereto under the GEM Listing Rules and the Listing
Rules. The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this report.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well
as the operation and financial performance of our Group. Directors
may participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.
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During the Financial Year 2018, the Board had held three
meetings, one annual general meeting and one extraordinary
general meeting. The attendance of the respective Directors at the
Board meetings and general meetings are set out below:

RZZE-N\FHBREFERN EFFEHTZREH  —ABRRE
BERGR—RABEREIAE ZEEHREFETEARER
REHERBINAT

Attendance/
Attendance/ Numbers of
Numbers of Board general meeting
meetings during during the
the Financial Financial
Year 2018 Year 2018
R-ZB-N\F R-ZZB-N\F
BRFEER HMBEER
HESBRE HEBBXRE
EEEERRH BRRERH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman) R EE (EE) 3/3 2/2
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing PRER A 3/3 2/2
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Kuan Hong Kin Daniel ERLELE 3/3 0/2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRER & 3/3 2/2
Mr. Chow Chun To BIRBEE 3/3 2/2
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph B A EE 3/3 1/2

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors in respect of
the shares of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”). After specific
enquiries by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard of dealings set out
in the Code of Conduct during the Financial Year 2018.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Group acknowledges the importance of adequate and ample
continuing professional development for the Directors for a sound
and effective internal control system and corporate governance.
In this regard, the Group has always encouraged our Directors
to attend relevant training courses to receive the latest news and
knowledge regarding corporate governance.

During the Financial Year 2018, each Director had participated
in continuous professional development by attending seminars/
workshops or by reading materials to update and refresh his skill
and knowledge necessary for the performance of his duty. All
Directors have also provided the Company a record of the training
they received. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular trainings to the Directors to ensure that they keep abreast
with the current requirements under the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees in
compliance with the relevant GEM Listing Rules and the Listing
Rules and to assist the Board to discharge its duties. Currently,
three committees have been established, i.e. the Audit Committee,
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”). The
functions and responsibilities of these committees have been set
out in the relevant terms of reference which are of no less stringent
than that stated in the CG Codes. The relevant terms of reference
of each of the three committees can be found on the Company’s
website (www.kinglandgroup.com.hk). All committees have been
provided with sufficient resources and support from the Group to
discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 and with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Codes. The primary
duties of our Audit Committee are, among other things, (i) to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditors; (ii) to review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting process of our Group; (jii)
to oversee the internal control systems of our Group; and (iv) to
oversee the corporate governance procedures and practices. The
Audit Committee currently consists of all three INEDs, namely Mr.
Chow Chun To, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny and Mr. Yam Chiu Fan
Joseph. Mr. Chow Chun To who has the appropriate accounting
and financial related management expertise, is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

During the Financial Year 2018, the Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s unaudited quarterly results for the three months
ended 31 March 2018 and the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2018 and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee had also reviewed
this report, and confirmed that this report complies with the
applicable standard, the GEM Listing Rules, the Listing Rules, and
other applicable legal requirements and that adequate disclosures
have been made. There is no disagreement between the Directors
and the Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment
of the external auditors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that
the Audit Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Financial Year 2018 and up to the date
of this report.
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three meetings. The attendance records of the members of the ZEEKER_ZT—N\FHERFERZ LELHEHMMMAT
Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2018 are summarised
below:
Attendance/Numbers of meetings
during the Financial Year 2018
R-ZB-NFHERFER
HESERE SEAH
Mr. Chow Chun To (Chairman) BIRBLE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRER &S 3/3
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph ML E 3/3
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Remuneration Committee

We have established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 and with
the written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Codes.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among
other things, (i) to review and make recommendations to our Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group; (i) to review and
approve other remuneration-related matters, including benefits-in-
kind and other compensation payable to our Directors and senior
management; and (jii) to review and approve performance-based
remuneration and to establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy in relation to remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee currently consists of an executive Director, namely Mr.
Cheung Shek On, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Ngai Sang
Kenny and Mr. Chow Chun To. Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the remuneration packages and
emoluments of Directors and senior management and considered
that they are fair and reasonable during the Financial Year 2018.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Board is of the view that the
Remuneration Committee has properly discharged its duties and
responsibilities during the Financial Year 2018 and up to the date
of this report.

During the Financial Year 2018, the Remuneration Committee had
held two meetings. The attendance records of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are summarised below:
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Attendance/Numbers of meetings
during the Financial Year 2018
REZB-NFHBRFER

HESBXE X
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (Chairman) BREX £ S (/) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Shek On REHRITE 2/2
Mr. Chow Chun To BIRELE 2/2

Remuneration of directors and senior management

Our Directors and senior management receive compensation
in the form of salaries, allowances, bonuses and other benefits-
in-kind, including our contribution to the pension scheme. The
Remuneration Committee determines the salaries of our Directors
based on each Director’s qualification, position and seniority.
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Nomination Committee

We have established the Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of our Directors passed on 22 November 2016 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Codes.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among
other things, (i) to review the structure, size and composition of
our Board on a regular basis; (i) to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and to select or make
recommendations to our Board on the selection of individuals for
nomination of directorships of the Company; (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) to
make recommendations to our Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of one executive Director, namely
Mr. Cheung Shek On, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Ngai
Sang Kenny and Mr. Chow Chun To. Mr. Cheung Shek On is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Financial Year 2018, the Nomination Committee had
held one meeting. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are summarised below:
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Attendance/

Numbers of meetings during
the Financial Year 2018
REZB-N\FUBRFER

HESZBXE SFRH
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman) R EE(EE) 11
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRER AR 1/1
Mr. Chow Chun To BIRF I E 1/1

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the nomination procedures for selecting
candidates for election as Directors. Such policy is adopted by the
Board and managed by the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee may put forward candidates who are
not nominated by Board members. The factors which would be
used as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate for Director include, inter
alia, character and integrity, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate
time to discharge duties as Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments, diversity of the Board, and such
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business. The
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced development
of the Company and also to enhance the quality of performance
of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional skills
and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to be
devoted as a director. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year
2018 to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for that year. The Directors
continue to adopt the going concern approach in preparing
the consolidated financial statements and are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The responsibilities of the external auditors about their
financial reporting are set out in the independent auditors’ report
attached to the Company’s financial statements for the Financial
Year 2018 set out in this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Financial Year 2018, the Group engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) as the Group’s external auditors to
conduct audit of the financial results of the Group for the Financial
Year 2018 with the remuneration payable of HK$720,000. Non-
audit services in relation to the transfer of listing amounting to
HK$280,000 had been provided by HLB to the Group during the
Financial Year 2018.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board must ensure that the Company establishes
and maintains effective risk management and internal control
systems to meet the objectives and safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Company.

The Board oversees the Group’s overall risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. At the same time, the
Group endeavors to identify risks, control impact of the identified
risks and facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating
measures. The risk management and intemnal control systems are
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) — Integrated Framework 2013
principles. They are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failures in order to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The Group has established a risk management policy which sets
out the process of identification, evaluation and management of
the principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and
establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

& The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The risk management framework, coupled with our internal
controls, ensures the risk associated with our different business
units are effectively controlled in line with the Group’s risk appetite.

The Group does not have an internal audit department. The
Group, yet has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an intemnal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department,
the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, is directly
responsible for risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The Group engaged an external consultant, CT Partners
Consultants Limited, for internal control to conduct review on the
internal control system of the Group during the Financial Year
2018. The review covers certain procedures on the provision of
concrete demalition services in Hong Kong and Macau, and makes
recommendations for improving and strengthening the internal
control system. No significant area of concemn that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Board has the overall responsibility to maintain the adequacies of
resources, staff qualifications and experience training programs
and budget of accounting and financial reporting function and the
Board concluded that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were in place and effective.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information
with the aim to ensure the insiders are abiding by the confidentiality
requirement and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), the GEM Listing Rules and the Listing Rules.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is
fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is
kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose
the information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in announcements are not false or
misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the
omission of a material fact in view of presenting information in a
clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Yeung Tak (“Mr. Chen”) was appointed by the Board as
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
since November 2016. The biographical details of Mr. Chen
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management”. The primary duties of the
Company Secretary include, but are not limited to, the following:
(i) to ensure the Board procedures are followed and that the
activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and effectively; (ii)
to assist the chairman to prepare agendas and Board papers for
meetings and disseminate such documents to the Directors and
Board committees in a timely manner; (iii) to timely disseminate
announcements and information relating to the Group; and (iv)
to maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other
Board Committees meetings. During the Financial Year 2018, the
Company Secretary had confirmed that he had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules and Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Procedures and right for shareholders to convene EGM

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM
are subject to the Articles (as amended from time to time), and the
applicable legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM Listing
Rules and the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time):

(@) Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition;
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(o)  The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) and deposit
it to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Flat B, G/F, Fu Hop Factory
Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, and such may consist of several documents in
like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists;

(c) The requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding,
the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of the
business(es) proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and
must be signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned
together with a deposit of a sum of money reasonable
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders;

(d)  The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office of the Company and
upon their confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the requirements under the
Articles to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary,
if the requisition has been verified as not in order or the
Shareholders concerned have failed to deposit sufficient
money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said
purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM; and

(e) If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/
herself/themselves may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Flat B, G/F,
Fu Hop Factory Building, 209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law
(Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles,
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may by means of
requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out
above.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting, the
annual report, interim report and quarterly reports (if any), notices,
announcements and circulars that are available on Company’s
website at www.kinglandgroup.com.hk.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the interests
of the Shareholder and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia:

1. the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

3. economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group;

4. business strategies of the Group, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-
term growth aspect of the business;

5 the current and future operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group;

6. statutory and regulatory restrictions; and
7. other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Financial Year 2018, there had been no significant
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT KINGLAND GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), recognise
our corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) to society. Accordingly,
we integrate social and environmental aspects into our daily
operations where practicable, whilst balancing the cost of such
integration against tangible returns. The Group’s approach to CSR
ensures that environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) risks
and opportunities are identified, evaluated and controlled in line
with industry best practice.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s and its
subsidiaries’ principal activity was the provision of concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a sub-
contractor. With over 30 years of experience, matured skills,
advanced machineries and safety management systems, we
provide feasible solutions and safe and high-quality specialised
services to our clients. We are committed to providing
environmentally friendly and safe professional services, as we
continuously help shaping a better society and environment and
contribute to sustainable development. The varying scenarios
requiring our services include addition and alteration works
and redevelopment projects in buildings, roads, tunnels and
underground facilities. In 2018, the Group engaged in 168
construction projects in Hong Kong and Macau.

REPORTING SCOPE AND STANDARDS

This ESG report (the “ESG Report”) is prepared in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The ESG Report concerns environmental and social impact and
the policies and initiatives of the Group that demonstrate our
long-term commitment to ensuring that our activities, at all levels,
are economically, socially and environmentally sustainable. The
information in this ESG Report is derived from the Group’s official
documents and statistical data, as well as from monitoring,
management and operational information from subsidiaries of the
Group that we have integrated and summarised. Additional details
on the Group’s corporate governance and financial performance
can be found in our annual report for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The reporting period of this ESG Report is from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2018 (“Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise
specified, this ESG Report highlights significant environmental and
social impacts of our business activities in the provision of concrete
demolition services.
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

ESG-based sustainability is important for long-term value
creation for our stakeholders. With the goal of strengthening its
sustainability approach and performance, the Group has put effort
into proactive engagement with different stakeholders. The key
stakeholder groups that we have engaged with have included not
only internal parties such as the board of directors and employees
but investors and shareholders, suppliers and contractors as
well as the community, and other external parties. The opinions
of stakeholders are invaluable in formulating and implementing
sustainable development strategies through which we can improve
our ESG performance.

FzEEAE 2R

ERRE @B HEERAN RMNEAM I ERE
EHEETANEHEER -AEENNBAKEERTH IR
RRBEE SHETRANGB@TEE2EES - KF2EY
TE2NHRAESARNTNERERLET (MEESRES) - T
BIERE B RN - R RARGE R A A B M H SR TT o
FEHEMEREMFEARITRE HERABRBOAFER
REER  NEBEINERERESE -

Stakeholder Groups Specific Stakeholder Communication Channel
Fi 25 48 B8 75 48 Bl HEMNZEBE BERE
Investors o Shareholders o Corporate website
o Potential investors o Annual and interim financial reports
° Annual general meetings
° Announcements and disclosure of listed
information
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Employees o Senior management o Direct communication
° Staff o Independent focus groups and interviews
. Direct workers . Training and seminars
o Potential recruits U Regular performance assessment
° CSR and volunteering activities
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o Customer assessment
. Designated customer hotline
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Suppliers/Contractors ° Materials suppliers o Suppliers assessment
o Sub-contractors o Quality and delivery review
o Service providers o Daily work review
. Site inspection/meeting with sub-contractors
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Government . Government agencies . Written correspondence
o Regulators o Statutory reports and general disclosures
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To ensure the effectiveness of stakeholder engagement, the
Group dedicates itself to establishing communication mechanisms
for transparency, integrity, accuracy and response timeliness to
stakeholders on an ongoing basis. Looking forward, the Group
will consider the feasibility of strengthening its interaction with
stakeholders, to create mutually beneficial relationships.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group is devoted to contributing in various areas of
sustainable development, including environmental protection,
one of the Group’s main concerns. To honour its commitment to
the environment, the Group has established clear policies, with
a strong emphasis on improving environmental management
practices by preventing pollution, reducing waste and enhancing
waste recycling, to reduce environmental impact from our
construction works.

EMISSIONS

Major emissions from our operations are air pollutants, noise,
waste and effluents from construction projects. To minimise our
environmental footprint in our operations, a range of initiatives have
been carried out across our operations to reduce emissions, and
waste generation and disposal.

Air Emission Control

Our construction activities can potentially cause environmental
harm, in the form of dust emissions and exhaust gases from
diesel-fuelled plant and equipment at construction sites, and
contribute to air pollution.

To improve roadside air quality and better protect public health,
the Environmental Protection Department (“EPD”) has initiated an
incentive-cum-regulatory approach of phasing out pre-Euro IV
diesel commercial vehicles. In response to the initiative, we have
replaced numerous Euro V vehicles to Euro VI vehicles during the
Reporting Period.

To minimise air pollutants in emissions, we opted to use energy
efficient fuel for our vehicles and machineries. In diesel engines,
dirty engines may result in inefficient combustion. The unique
DYNAFLEX technology contains powerful new and improved
cleaning molecule that help to control dirt deposits in key fuel
system components and also maintain injector cleanliness. During
the Reporting Period, we ensured that we used Shell FuelSave
Diesel with sulphur content not exceeding 0.005% by weight,
where applicable, for our vehicles, diesel-operated plant and
machineries (coring, sawing, bursting and crushing machines and
robots). Regular checks and maintenance of construction plant
and machineries are conducted to improve the efficiency and
curb emissions of dark smoke. Screens will also be set up where
appropriate, to reduce the impact of exhaust fumes or smoke
emission from construction plants or activities on the public.

During the Reporting Period, we strictly followed the legal
requirements under the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)
and the Air Pollution Control (Air Pollutant Emission) (Controlled
Vehicles) Regulation (Cap. 311X) of Hong Kong.
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Noise Control

The Group recognises that noise challenges are unique to each
project and there is always scope for further reducing noise in
communities surrounding our sites. In this regard, we strictly
adhere to relevant laws and regulations when managing the
impact of construction noise on the surrounding environment.
When necessary, the Group applies for a construction noise
permit for every site that passes a range of testing by the EPD.
To bring noise levels within an acceptable range, the quantity and
types of machines used are minimised. While observing permit
specifications, we also install noise barriers to reduce construction
noise impact on nearby communities when necessary. We
regularly check noise levels at our construction sites against the
requirements. During the Reporting Period, the results of all sites
mentioned did not exceed the noise level limit.

Environmentally-Friendly Demolition Methods

Construction materials such as sands and cements stored
outdoors as well as dust from exposed construction areas
are easily scattered in dry and windy weather. To prevent the
generation of dust during our works, methods such as hydraulic
splitting, and diamond blade and wire saw cutting are adopted.

As site clearance is often an integral part of our customers’
projects, we also provide a comprehensive controlled concrete
demolition service, using remote-control, multi-purpose robots.
Since the robots are powered from a 3-phase source and
equipped with a hydraulic breaker or hydraulic crusher, zero
exhaust gas and minimal vibration arise during works. Using
remote controls, our workers keep themselves at a safe distance
from the working area, minimising the risks from falling rubble and
debris. In accordance with the Air Pollution Control (Non-road
Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation, all our machineries used
on-site are approved or exempted by the EPD.

The largest source of the Group’s GHG emissions is Scope 1
— GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources from fuel
consumed during operations by our vehicles and diesel-operated
plant and machineries. During the Reporting Period, a number of
our construction projects were in remote area. Accordingly, there
was a significant increase in kilometres travelled and units of fuel
consumed from vehicles and machineries.

For the Reporting Period, air emissions generated by the Group
were as follows:

1R

AEERBIZEEBENBHUEREBNRSHE TR - B
REEZRE—PROBRMANBRYAESHRELANRS - £15
AE BAREERZERTHRZRENYEE RS ETAR
ERFER -WMAVE  AEEASEBBRREE —RIAR
IR RFREEREFAIE - AEREENEANEIBER -
F{E =B E MBI RE R © E-E TR ER R -
HAMEBERLZRESRE RO RERSHROTROTZE -
HPEHEEARAERERZEMBNEZTEE - NREHA
Frtpr AN E ARG RBBRZKFRE -

BRIFEHTGE

HEEIREZRMRRT - EINMFRAD F KT E R EM BHA R
RENZEEHNNERT SRR - RULETHPELNE
BFFAREER &R AER RREDEZEITE -

MR AEEIREE REME S REEKIH - HATRERE
7 2RSS AREEEMNRIEERTIFHRS - AR %S
ABH=HEREELAEREBEL SRR - jETiBR
PAELER RHEM - EREZEEER  RMANTARHA
TERIFRIE L 2IERE - SR E R RRED MBF A i E e R -
RIBCERISRE B GEERB M) (Pr) RE)D - RARS
TR Z2 AR IR REBH L HA R

AEFRERBFRNRARBEREE 1 —REERESBRE
FR BB RE AL B0 B KR J5E IR A K% (56 R S ek 3B 1 B TR 5 AN 28 B
BEREYIR NI EHA - HAIN S EREIR B U NMRERE -
Ett - B R ERPATTEER R EBUA R TR B A B LN -

RWERAR - AEBEFFELEMNERERAT -

Unit 2018 2017
B —E-N\EF —E—tF
Emissions data from vehicles BEREREE
Nitrogen Oxide (NO,) A|ky kg T 3% 861.27 391.45
Sulphur Oxide (SOy) =R kg T 1.42 2.90
Particulate Matter (PM) kL kg T3 75.75 38.10
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For the Reporting Period, GHG emissions generated by the Group
were as follows:

BRIR - SRR ERE

RIREMAN - AEBEMELRNR=REETRAT

Unit 2018 2017
By —E-N\F —E—tF
Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)
BEEFRSRRESIR (HEE1)
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources  Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 229.60 470.56
REBEREIRIRE RN — &b H% (COy) 7
Methane (CH.) kg 44461 474.02
FR 5% (CH.) F5=
Nitrous oxide (N2O) tonne 9.07 18.27
—&E =R N0) A
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
R B (BE2)
Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 54.80 65.40
BREAABENES —E1bHx(COy) e
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)
Hip Mg m (8E3)
Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 2.02 0.68
TEHIR 5 R B H RE 4 Z&1EHR(CO,) 7]
Electricity used for processing fresh water and
sewage by government department Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 0.46 5.30
BT B PR B A K 5K E B E 1 — a1 H% (COy) i

Looking forward, the Group will continue to assess, record and
disclose its GHG emissions annually. Data in the Reporting Period
will be used as a baseline for comparison against data in the
coming years, which will form the basis for establishing a more
refined carbon reduction strategy.

WASTE MANAGEMENT

Waste still remains one of the greatest environmental challenges
in the Hong Kong construction sector. Due to the nature of
our business, significant quantities of excavated materials are
generated from construction excavations. By implementing
measures to reduce, reuse and recycle and systematically
sort waste materials on- and off-site, we aim to reduce waste
generation at source. General inert waste from work, such as
soil and concrete, is reused as filing material in on-site backfilling
works, where appropriate, or delivered to public filling areas to
conserve landfill space. The remaining inert construction and
demolition waste is disposed of by refuse collection trucks from the
government authorised service provider, which can also prohibit
illegal dumping. With the goal of reducing waste generation,
we actively monitor and manage the use of resources from our
construction activities and provide proper collection, storage,
transportation, disposal and treatment of wastes.

Our project teams ensure efficient use of materials by well
designed project plan and avoids over-ordering by accurate
quantity forecasting. Where appropriate, materials excavated
from our construction sites are sorted, segregated and reused as
filling materials. By actively monitoring and managing the use of
resources, we aim to reduce our operating costs as well as our
carbon footprint.

In respect of office waste, we shall continue to encourage our
employees to fully utilise all materials, to avoid unnecessary waste
and to reduce paper usage through electronic means.

REARR  AEEGEEGFN(G S NIRELR =R o
R HI B A P LR R R BURE L B A B H B
J2 37 5 AR AR B SRS 0 R

B ER

BEMDREEREERANRERB 2 — - AREHIEEEA -
BN EEZEFELEASIZBEMF - BBEREEARIES
FImsNm A« B R O Y B R I R e it B ELHE 1T 0 48 - A
EERNRERVENESLE - TEEEN —RIBEEY (AL
FRREL) EEEBRTENMAER SO ETIZAETME
HE R N HIEIE R AR EEIR IS AT o TSRO 15 1 12 28 N 3 () B
) IR P AR A ) BR A (L FE P A B SR AR SR SRR I8 SE A AR LR 3F
EIEE  WRAPBEMEESBR  RABEGEZEREEZSER
BNERER  URERE TR EH - REREIEEY -

AP0 B BEGE B O RETHIIA B 5T SRR A BE R
WiEBEROBETNRLRERE - EEEBERT - HlH
BESEMBIBWMOMEETOR  DREREBHAEETHF -
BRBBREREREEERNERBR  BMEERDEEKAN
Ko e B -
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For the Reporting Period, the amount of non-hazardous waste
produced by the Group was as follows:

RBERR - AREMELNEZENENT

Unit 2018 2017
By —E-N\F —E—+tF
Construction waste produced tonne 2,315.83 1,378.70
FEE R EEREY) 7
Construction waste intensity tonne per construction site 13.78 7.88
BEEYEE g (& AR S AR )

During the Reporting Period, no significant hazardous waste was
generated from our operations.

USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources consumed by the Group are water and
energy. The Group is committed to resource conservation and is
determined to improve energy efficiency in its offices by promoting
efficient use of power and adopting green technologies. For
instance, the Group continues to upgrade equipment, for example,
purchasing electrical appliances with efficient-energy labelling
(i.e. Grade 1 — the most energy-efficient in the market) from the
Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme. Air-conditioning
systems are pre-set to a specific temperature (i.e. 25 degrees
Celsius), which enables a comfortable environment and avoids
power waste. The Group places great emphasis on resource
conservation and strives to enhance energy efficiency by stepping
up the maintenance of construction equipment, optimising
operational standards and adopting energy-saving measures. The
Group raises environmental awareness and staff standards by
strengthening management and providing training.

Water Management

Apart from office operations, the major source of the Group’s
water consumption is its construction segment. Construction
wastewater with a high level of suspended solids is generated
during our operations. Accordingly, the collected wastewater is
properly treated by the on-site wastewater treatment facilities
and meets the licenced discharge standards before reuse or
discharge. Regular self-monitoring of the water quality of effluent
is carried out to ensure the related regulatory standards are met.
At our construction sites, wastewater is collected and properly
treated by on-site wastewater treatment facilities, and we regularly
spray roads and exposed or loose-soil surfaces with water to
suppress dust. Vehicles have to undergo wheel-washing before
leaving the sites, to remove any dusty materials. Sub-contractors
are also encouraged to work closely with our staff, to implement
appropriate measures to prevent the waste of freshwater on-site.

The Group encounters no issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

RBERA - RPN BELBELEREEEY -

BIREM

AEBERANTZERBKMER - AEEH NN ERFRE -
REBREAVAERRBRERMARTTERREZNEIR
ME - flan > REBFETTRRE  EMBEERHIERIRME
BEABRTHASBERR (AR —T5 EREAESR) D
B HMBE=R/ERREREERHERE (BI2BKE) - B
BEERHE-—EFENRREAKBELENRE AEEAREER
BIRIRE - BBMBEEREAEE BCEBRERIRIATRE
HHE - DFRTTRERMER - REEFEMNRE R MIRHIEIIAR

BREBHME TIRE -

KEEER

B AEEEIN  AEBEEENRKRRBEZED L - L
NEEHEEELSAAS B ERAEEREK - Fit - WE
HEE 7K 3RS RE K B I8 SR 2 = R TR - A A S BE DR E 2K
FEAT B R BUARZE « B AP TE BB B OK M K E 1T B BB - DARE
R AMEREERE - EEFER  BKARGEKEERNE
WER I 32 E R IR o TR 8 A PR K IR S BR I R BB SRR A IR
ZRTE VA K5 BB o =B A B A 1 AR A S R ETT BB R R L - KB
EMERDF - RATXBO EFERMNETERESE K
HUEE i AP LR SRR KERE

N £2 [ SR ERE A 7KOIR A 18 R 1 fRT 1 28 o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

For the Reporting Period, the resources consumed by the Group
were as follows:

BRIR - SRR ERE

RBERR - AEEFEANERAT :

Unit 2018 2017
By —E-N\F —E—tF
Electricity Consumption kWh 86,977.20 1083,804.00
HEE FRE
kWh/employee 797.96 926.82
TRK EE
Water Consumption m3 652.26 3,778.00
K= 3K 5.98 .73
mé?/employee
SR EE

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s operations did not involve
any use of packaging materials.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Our operating activities comply with all applicable environmental
regulations and have no significant impact on the environment
and natural resources. Being aware of our responsibility to the
environment and the general public, we are dedicated to adopting
preventive measures as necessary to reduce risks and work
closely with the communities affected by our business operations.

In managing emissions, the Group abides by related environmental
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance (Cap. 311), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap.
354), Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358), Noise
Control Ordinance (Cap. 400), Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap.
466), Environment Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
and other regulations promulgated by government authorities
and currently applicable to the Group. To step up our control
on emissions and resource use, for our projects we also adhere
to main contractors’ environmental management requirements,
which ensures mitigation measures are effectively implemented,
with proper monitoring and remedial measures that satisfy relevant
requirements.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to air and GHG emissions,
noise control, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

RBERA - AEENZEW TS N RER SR -

RERBRER

HPMEEENEMABERAREER  HREFBAERIL
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B

FEEEPWE  AEBEETHARREZIER  8FEETR
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group treasures employee’s talent and sees it as the key in
driving success and maintaining sustainable development. We are
committed to providing an inclusive and harmonious workplace
which provides equal opportunities to all employees regardless
of their gender, age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation,
disability, or other aspects of diversity, for promoting their careers,
professional skills and advancement. The Group is responsible for
reviewing and updating the relevant company employment policies
on a regular basis, to comply with anti-discrimination ordinances
and guidance under the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), Laws
of Hong Kong, and Macau’s Labour Relations Law and Law
on Employment of Non-Resident Workers, as well as adjusting
industry features and practices to ensure full compliance with the
latest laws and regulations.

It is part of our mission to help attract, motivate and keep our
people through attractive remuneration packages. Benefits such as
salary increments, bonuses, and medical allowances are offered.
In talent recruitment, the Group resolutely rejects discrimination,
adheres to the principles of fairness, justice and ability and
performance, and offers promotions and annually reviews salaries
according to the employees’ conduct.

A Staff Handbook is available and is updated when necessary so
that employees are aware of the goals, policies and procedures of
the Group as well as their responsibilities. The handbook stipulates
the guidelines on recruitment and promotion, compensation and
dismissal, as well as the working hours, rest periods, appraisal,
training and other benefits, etc.
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RIE - 2 RAERSE

Staff Composition BITHER
The Group is mainly engaged in construction and demolition REBFENEREERKFHIR EFEMHEN Bt 3
works, which demand physical strength. Hence, male employees HEEERELGEIRENARZE - A ARERNEET
are traditionally a majority in the workforce. However, the Group ERBETHERELREEZENTE - ATRMERAESRE
has committed itself to striking a balance between male and TERE o

female employees in its working environment, and to providing
equal opportunities to employees of different genders.

As at 31 December 2018, we employed a total of 109 staff, REZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HB HMEAEHEIVZETL &
including back office and site staff. 108 of our staff members are FHREIRAERMBET - RMEIREI108BLNES « &
located in Hong Kong while only 1 employee is located in Macau. B1BEBARIBPT -
Employees by Gender Employees by Employment Category
RUERESNES RERERNESHNES
90
80 78
70
60
50
40
3 :
20
20
11
.1
0
Senior Middle Entry Level
Management Management
SRERAE HEEEAR AR
Employees by Age Group
RERAEESINES
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Staff Turnover

There is high labour mobility in the construction industry, and most
employees in it are temporary, employed on a day-to-day basis or
for a fixed period of less than 60 days. Hence, those daily workers
were not counted in our annual turnover rate calculation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a turnover rate of
approximately 31%. The employee turnover rate by gender was
quite balanced this year with 34% of our male staff and 22% of our
female staff leaving the Group. Geographically, 31% of staff based
in Hong Kong left the Group, staffing in Macau was unchanged.

During the Reporting Period, employee turnover categorised by
age was as follows: 86% of those in the 18 to 30 bracket left
the Group, as did 25% of those from the 31 to 40 bracket, 20%
of those in the 41 to 50 bracket, 22% of those in the 51 to 60
bracket, and 0% of those over 60 years old.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, measures and other
benefits and welfare.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

With construction as our principal business activity, occupational
health and safety (“OHS”) is one of the top priorities of the
Group. It adheres to relevant health and safety laws including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509), Employees’
Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282), Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59), Laws of Hong Kong, and
has provided adequate training and instructions for all levels of
employee.

We consider health and safety at work to be matters of interest
and the responsibility of both the Group and employees.
Employees are required to take reasonable care regarding their
own health and safety and that of others with a view to maintaining
an injury-free workplace. As there are machineries and other
equipment in the construction sites, employees will be more prone
to industrial accidents. Hence, we have implemented a health and
safety management system which is certified with the international
OHSAS 18001:2007 standard by Fugro Certification Services
Limited for the identification, management and control of the
safety-related risks in our daily operations. We require employees
to comply strictly with the safety policy and guidelines in the OHS
Management System for on-site project teams and employees
working in head office, both of which clearly specify work flows and
all kinds of safety measures and guidance, as well as employees’
responsibilities for their health and safety at our workplace.
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To ensure that all employees have adequate knowledge in
protecting themselves from occupational hazards, the Group has
in place a training programme to ensure that employees at all
levels receive appropriate safety training and are competent to
carry out their duties. Relevant OHS training is provided to our staff
and workers such as safety induction training, safety toolbox talks,
specific training for high-risk activities and periodic emergency
and contingency drills. Depending on work nature, workers are
required to wear appropriate personal protective equipment such
as safety helmets, safety shoes and high visibility clothing. No
workers are allowed to operate machineries or perform high-risk
tasks like working in confined spaces or working with electrical
appliances without the approval and oversight of supervisors.

Since the Labour Department strictly requires that only persons
who have been trained in basic safety and hold valid certificates
may be employed in the Group’s construction operations, project
managers are responsible for making sure that all workers hold
valid licenses. The Group believes this is a fundamental step in
minimising risks and preventing accidents at the workplace.

In case of any incidents, every case of injury has to be reported
and assessed individually. Follow-up investigations are carried out
to find out the root causes, to ensure proper safety precautions
and prevent recurrence.

For the Reporting Period, the work injury statistics for the Group
were as follows:

BRIR - SRR ERE

RERMEEEAGERESFRIBEEBETNEATE - &
SERIFIFENERSPREREEZTFEENLZ ZEIIAL B E
NETHERE -BMAETRT AMRERNBEERL 25 -
FIanABZ 25 2 E R TAMBE  SREESHER
FAIAREHNESEESRE - HF THEEE - TAAME
BEMEARERE PlNZ2E Z2ERRAEKX - REE
BEHERES TATFREASIETRRERES - 1R
ZR =R TFRIEE S -

MRS TRERRTE  RARXBEARALRRILFE G RE
HTOALTTERERBRASEETESEER At HAKEER
EMERMBEIARBERMER FEBAGEHERZERER
BN B LTRSS PR BN B P8R -

i ARSI BRI HERMIAE T RE L E R o HA5E
TREFASHHBARRE - URFREGBEE N ERMGHEEL
07 IEBREE LB -

RIS - AEEN TSR BENT :

Work Injury Statistics Unit 2018 2017
TERe8E B —E-N\F —E—tF
Number of work-related fatalities Case 0 0
TEMEBERT A =
Rate of work-related fatalities Percentage 0% 0%
TEMEmEET = [EN
Lost days due to work injury Day 476 600
TEEHHEELTEEE X

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
cases of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group in terms of providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Given that each position has unique professional and technical
needs, the Group ensures that all new hires receive proper
orientation and mentoring to help them adapt to the new working
environment quickly and effectively. In line with the Group’s
commitment to providing adequate training opportunities to
enhance employees’ knowledge and skills, a continuous training
commitment is given by the Group covering different areas.
Internal training programs and vocational training for specific skills
development are provided to relevant employees, so as to ensure
that they possess the appropriate qualities and skill-sets.

RBRERAAR  AEEL TABEATETEBRERZETER
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The Group offers a safety orientation training package to all
new employees, to familiarise them with the Group’s health and
safety policies quickly. The syllabus provided to new hires is
comprehensive, covering general duties, personal safety, personal
protective equipment, incident and accident report and basic
drilling training, etc.

Our employees receive performance-based appraisals annually.
Feedback from supervisors and managers helps our staff set work
goals and expectations, as well as evolve in ways that are good for
their personal growth and future career development.

During the Reporting Period, our male employees and female
employees participated in training, with the average duration at
approximately 24.73 hours and 15.76 hours respectively. The
average duration of training for senior and middle management
and entry level employees was approximately 0.36 hours, 12.50
hours and 29.12 hours respectively.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has provided 2,525.50
hours of training sessions to its employees, which included
trainings provided to existing employees and employees who left
the Group.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group is committed to eliminating all forms of forced labour,
and supporting the effective abolition of child labour. We strictly
prohibit the use of child and forced labour in our workplace by
adhering to the Employment of Children and Employment of Young
Persons (Industry) Regulations under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57), Laws of Hong Kong.

Comprehensive recruitment procedures are in place to check and
verify the age of applicants before commencement of work. To
prevent child labour, we require candidates to present their valid
proof of identity to ensure that they have reached the legal working
age. Important details such as job duties, locations and working
hours of the staff are also set out clearly in the employment
contract to protect their rights and interests, and forced labour
is strictly prohibited. If violations are identified, we take full
responsibility for investigation. At the same time, employees can
report to the management at any time cases in which their rights
have been violated.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that had a significant
impact on the Group in relation to preventing child and forced
labour.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

As a corporation with basic principles rooted in sustainable
development while fulfilling social responsibilities, it is critical for the
Group to maintain and manage a reliable supply chain that takes
environmental and societal impact into consideration. This requires
an efficient and strict monitoring regime for supply chain practices.

Our supply chain management policies and procedures include
assessment, selection, approval, procurement and performance
evaluation. Supplier assessment will be conducted by the Group
based on specification, quality, price, delivery lead time, service
and applicable environmental considerations if deemed necessary.
A list of approved suppliers is in place, and we only select suppliers
and appoint sub-contractors from this approved list, unless certain
suppliers are individually reviewed and approved by management
or specifically requested by the client.

The Group liaises closely with its suppliers to ensure that all
suppliers and sub-contractors comply with applicable laws and
regulations. As we are committed to eliminating any child or forced
labour, sub-contractors are required to submit relevant certificates
to our project teams for registration, and only registered workers
are allowed to enter the projects sites.

The Group strives to reduce its environmental impacts and lower
associated risks during sourcing activities when cooperating with
suppliers and sub-contractors. In 2018, we cooperated only with
local suppliers and sub-contractors, thereby effectively reducing
carbon emissions from transportation of materials.

During the Reporting Period, the number of suppliers by
geographical region of the Group was as follows:
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Improving the quality of life in society and building a better
environment have always been our goal. In order to achieve them,
we strive to deliver high-quality, safe construction services to our
clients.

To ensure that we deliver high quality services in a consistent
manner, we have established and implemented an ISO 9001:2015
certified quality management system (“QMS”) by Fugro Certification
Services Limited in our operations. This system helps us to comply
with the relevant regulatory requirements that are applicable
to our products and services, fulfil contractual requirements
with quality management as our top priority and satisfy client
expectations through continuous improvement. The Group also
provides adequate training to all levels of employees, to raise their
awareness of QMS in their tasks periodically. We communicate
with stakeholders regarding this commitment and pass on
information related to quality management.

During the Reporting Period, we received no complaints or claims
from our clients arising from quality issues in work performed
by us or our sub-contractors. This, in the view of Directors, was
attributable to effective quality control measures.

The Group acknowledges the importance of protecting the privacy
of clients’ personal data. Property of our clients such as personal
data, material, tools and equipment, are stored with due care.
In compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap.
486), Laws of Hong Kong, and the Personal Data Protection Act
of Macau, we ensure that all the business data collected from our
clients is treated as strictly confidential and is properly dealt with by
our staff. Different access levels are set for employees at different
levels to prevent unauthorised personnel from getting hold of the
information.

We respect intellectual rights and prohibit the use of unauthorised
products and services. We only purchase from authorised suppliers
or copyright-holders. The Group complies with intellectual property
(“IP”) rights regulations to protect the interest of the Group and
clients and requires suppliers to comply with IP rights to ensure
confidentiality and integrity.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group upholds values of integrity and opposes corruption,
bribery, money-laundering and other fraudulent activities in
connection with any of its business operations. The Group strictly
adheres to relevant regulations and laws, such as the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201), the Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615), Laws of Hong
Kong.

To facilitate identification of suspected cases of corruption,
money-laundering and other misconduct, the Group’s Whistle-
Blowing Policy, encourages employees to report directly to senior
management any misconduct and dishonest behaviour. We will
protect the identity of any informer and retaliation shall not be
permissible. All reported cases will be investigated in a fair and
proper manner, and the Group will take all necessary action to
protect the rights and interests of the Group and its stakeholders.

The tendering process is vital to our business, and all tendering
documents are kept confidential and restricted to concerned
parties only. Fairness is needed to protect the interests of the
Group and our clients. Employees responsible for tendering must
comply with the Competition Ordinance (Cap. 619), Laws of Hong
Kong, and refrain from exchanging or communicating any sensitive
information with or to competitors, from participating in price-fixing,
imposition of restrictions on clients or abuse of a dominant market
position.

For the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any cases
of non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has consistently
engaged in community activities while expanding its footprint,
with the goal of paying society back by leveraging our resources
to support community programmes and charitable services.
Together with fulfilling CSR obligations in daily operations, the
Group also proactively participates in social welfare activities,
makes donations and encourages employees to participate in
community enhancement events such volunteering and fundraising
events, to better serve our community. Meanwhile, the Group has
strengthened its ties and ensured continuous communication with
members of the communities where it operates, to show a caring
and serving spirit.

In June 2018, the Group donated to the Sik Sik Yuen charitable
organisation in support of its medical, educational and elderly-
oriented services. During the Reporting Period, the Group also
donated to the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals in support of the
“Friends of Tung Wah” Monthly Donation Scheme, for provision
of free services and improvement and expansion of its medical,
education and community services.

During the Reporting Period, our community engagement services
mainly focused on contributing to medical and community
services.
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RIR - HERRERE

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY - ENVIRONMENTAL

REBERE-RE

Air Emissions Unit 2018 2017
KRR B —E-N\F —E2—tF
Nitrogen Oxide (NOy) kg 861.27 391.45
AA{E (NO,) Fr
Sulphur Oxide (SOx) kg 1.42 2.90
Ha b4 (SO T5=
Particulate Matter (PM) kg 75.75 38.10
FARLY) (PM) Fr
GHG Emissions Unit 2018 2017
= SRS HE R B —E-N\F —Z2—tF
Direct emission or removals from sources (Scope 1)
BEEERSERRESER (FE1)
GHG emissions from mobile combustion sources  Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 229.60 470.56
R BB EIRGEIR AR E REE BN Z (LR (COy) i
Methane (CH,) kg 444.61 474.02
FR T (CH.) T
Nitrous oxide (N-O) tonne 9.07 18.27
—&t=AN0) g
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
REOR BB (BE 2)
Electricity purchased from power companies Carbon Dioxide (CO»,) tonne 54.80 65.40
BEENAHEENE S Z&{bH%(COy) 145
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3)
Hib @ EHm (8E3)
Paper waste disposed at landfills Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 2.02 0.68
TERIR 5 5 B ) R 4R Z (LR (COy) 7}
Electricity used for processing fresh water and
sewage by government department Carbon Dioxide (CO,) tonne 0.46 5.30
BT B FIRR 3R K 57K fE A I E ) ZS{EHR (COy) 7}
Resources Consumption Unit 2018 2017
BRHEZE By =—E2-N\F —ZE—+F
Electricity Consumption kWh 86,977.20 103,804
8 T R
kWh/employee 797.96 926.82
TERE BB
Water Consumption m? 652.26 3,778
FEK LK
m3/employee 5.98 33.73
SR BB
Unit 2018 2017
By —ZE-N\F —ZE—+tF
Construction waste produced tonne 2,315.83 1,378.70
EENEERED Mg
Construction waste intensity tonne 13.78 7.88
BEEYEE 1
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RIE - B RAERS
PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY - SOCIAL (EXTRACT) REHBERE-HS (FR)

Total Workforce Total Workforce
No. of People in No. of People in

2018 2017
—E2-NF —ZT—+tF
ETHAH BTAY
By Gender RRIE D
Male B 90 93
Female 4 19 19
By Age Group RERAE D
18 — 30 years old 18 £ 30 5% 17 27
31 - 40 years old 31E4075% 25 25
41 - 50 years old 41 E507% 26 24
51 - 60 years old 51 £ 607% 31 30
Over 60 years old 607% LA £ 10 6
By Employee Category RESERE S
Senior Management =R ERE 11 10
Middle Management FREEE 20 22
Entry Level CUESS 78 80

Employment Turnover in 2018
ZE-NFEERK

Employment Turnover in 2017
—E2-tFERERK

No. of People Turnover Rate No. of People Turnover Rate
AE A= A K=

By Gender MR8 5
Male B4 22 34% 16 31%
Female 7 4 22% 3 18%
By Age Group BRERHEE D
18 - 30 years old 18 £305% 12 86% 7 39%
31 - 40 years old 31 E4075% 5 25% 6 46%
41 - 50 years old 41 E503% 4 20% 3 25%
51 — 60 years old 51 £ 605% 5 22% 3 13%
Over 60 years old 60 5% A _E 0 0% 0 0%
Work Injury Statistics Unit 2018 2017
TE# T 8B B —E-N\F —E2—+tF
Number of work-related fatalities Case 0 0
TR T A =
Rate of work-related fatalities Percentage 0% 0%
TEMRRBASLT X Bo
Lost days due to work injury Day 476 600
TEEBIBRTIERH PN
Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region 2018 2017
RHEEESHWHERRE —E-N\F —ZE—+tF
Hong Kong BB 79 76
The PRC Fh 3 3
Asia (except Hong Kong and the PRC) TN (BB XA BRI 1 1
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RIR - HERRERE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
CONTENT INDEX

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Guide
The following table provides an overview of the general disclosures
and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) of various aspects under
each subject area, which are either cross-referenced to the
relevant chapters of the ESG Report or supplementing the ESG
Report with additional information.

R - HEREBABT RS

ARG HESOaBMENRERE HERERBREEIRS -
THRBMEETZHHERTTIRBES —RFERARERER
(TRARERUER])  YHIIRE L2 REREHEEERS
IRz BN IRH RN -

Description Reference Remark
it Bz e
ENVIRONMENTAL
RE
Aspect A1: EMISSIONS
EBEA1: BBy
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance Protecting the
with relevant laws and regulations that have a Environment
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and Emissions
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and ~ Waste Management
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
—MRIRER BRAERIORERBHEN - ﬁﬂﬂKZij:ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁ}% B RERE
EREBEFEVNELEZN  @BER  RO)ETEH W
%ﬁAﬁEﬁwamﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬂméﬂ REZE Y E IR
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions
BB AE IR AL e iR R N AR R BE P BUR - HERR
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Emissions
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BB AE BIRIRAL.2 BERBABNE CANETE) X (MER)HE (I B
NBESEN FEHRMETHE) °
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, N/A We do not generate
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production hazardous waste in our
volume, per facility). operations.
BABEAERIEIRAL3 FEXASEEDHEE CAEGE) & (ER) & i@ BMERERALRELER
(WMABEBEN  FERMAE) - EREY)

KPI'A1.4

FARENIEIZAL4
KPIA1.5
RASRIE UIRIZA1.5

KPI'A1.6

BB RIRIRALG

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEAEZSEEYES CAETE) R (WER)BE
(WAGES BN - FEHBMTE) o

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

HAUBEHE R E B e R TSR o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.

Ml EBEEERETEENN A -
B RATSRR o

BIRELEEN

Annual Report 2018

Waste Management

REEYE L

Waste Management
Emissions
REZEYE TR

B

Waste Management

EEYE L
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BRIR - SRR ERE

Description Reference Remark

g 2% B

Aspect A2: USE OF RESOURCES

BEA2: ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Use of Resources
energy, water and other raw materials.

—RRKER BREAER(BEER KREMRME) HBER - BIR6EM

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Use of Resources
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BB A IR IR A2.1 REAESMERE R SHEEER (OB - J5oh)  BIRER
BREE(UTETRSAE) REE (WATESE
i - BIEZRME) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit ~ Use of Resources
of production volume, per facility).

BB AE IR A2.2 BRKEREE (MABESEN BERWBTE) - BREH

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and Use of Resources
results achieved.

BIBEE IR IRA2.3 it gE IR (B A a5t B R FT1S AR © BIR{EA

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing Use of Resources —
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives ~ Water Management
and results achieved.

BB EMIRIRA2.4 atSREGE AR Rl BERERE - ARRFRK  BRER-AKER
Wt & R PTIEAHR -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products N/A We do not generate
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit significant packaging
produced. material waste in our

operations.

RABEE IR IRA2.5 B MTAREMEINBE (EETE) R (EA) TER BMELEDIRELES
BEEEMUGE - REEMEIEEY) o

Aspect A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

EHEA3: RERARER

General Disclosure

— R
KPI AG.1

RS A IR IR AS

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.
BIRBEITAHRRERBREREXNERZEZNBER
Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
HEBEHHRBEREBARERNEATZE R
MERFRAZENITE -

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

EEREIER

Aspect B1: EMPLOYMENT

EBEB1: EE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B1.1

R A RIER B

KPI B1.2

A RIERB1.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hour, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, other beneﬁts and welfare.
EURFMREE BEREA  TERH - RE -
FEHE %mm &ﬁﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁL&%ﬂ%i
@EBE : RO)BTFHETATEATENEREZE
&ﬁ%%éﬂ

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region.

RIER EEEE  FhER MR E S HIESRE -
Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - FEAR KRB S HES MK K o

Environment and Natural
Resources
RERBAER
Environment and Natural
Resources

RENBAER

Employment and Labour
Practices

Employment and
Labour Practices — Staff

Composition
EBERLEIEH-—B8T
#ERX

Employment and
Labour Practices — Staff
Turnover

EEkSIHEE-—8T
//IL 9&

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE
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RIE - HERBGERE

Description
it

Reference

2

Aspect B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

EmEB2: @FRZ2

General Disclosure

— AR EE

KPI B2.1
BB AR BT B2.1
KPI B2.2
BB IR RIEIRB2.2
KPIB2.3

RSB B AIETEB2.3

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employee
from occupational hazards.
FRAREZETERBEIMREREMEBELREE
B @B RO)ETHETABERZENIAH
EERIROIRE R

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
EIERERMETHASB KL E -

Lost days due to work injury.

EIEERATIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored.

IR PTER AN B BB R R B e 2 H0 1 - DA RRAB R #AT
REETE -

Aspect B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

[EE B3 : &R K&

General Disclosure

— R E
KPI B3.1

B AR 3B 1R BS.1
KPI B3.2

RS AR5 B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

BRI HE B BT TIEBE M A B R AR BUR »
HIIFIES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category.

R REEEFESNZIEEA DL °

The average training hours completed per employee
gender and employee category.

R REBRRE D  BREETKZINNFH
Rr &

Aspect B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

[EEB4 : B TR

General Disclosure

— R

KPI B4.1

R E B IEIEBAA

KPI B4.2

PR A IR BA.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.
BRELET RS TH : (QBK : &b)ETY
BT ANBERZENHEBEERBOINER -
Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

R ST BRI IR e AR o E T RoRHIS T -
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

R IE RIS E IR A BB AT ERERA 5K

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Health and Safety

RERZE

Health and Safety
REREZ R
Health and Safety
RERZZ
Health and Safety

RERZE

Development and
Training

R Mg

Development and
Training

R R
Development and
Training

R R

Employment and Labour

Practices

BEARSTER

Labour Standards

4 TR

N

Labour Standards

The child and forced labour
issues are not material to
our operations.
B my R EE A
ETRBHEIHERE

The child and forced labour
issues are not material to
our operations.

B A&y KA
ET KRGS TIHERE
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Description Reference Remark
it Bz e
Aspect B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT.
[EEBS5: tEEER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of ~ Supply Chain
the supply chain. Management
—MIREE ERHBENRE IR REE - HrEEE R
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain
Management
BB AE 1R B5.1 R E DM EREA - e s E
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,  Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.
BB E IR B5.2 R EAEAMEENEN  mARTERENN HERER
HEREEE  URBEEANNITRERFX -
Aspect B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
[BEB6: EREME
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance Product Responsibility
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
—RR IR FRAMREHERMRENRERELZSY  BS \$? EmAE
RABERARERFER © @BE : R (o) E<PE
BITABERTENHEBERELROINER -
KPI B6.1 Percentage to total products sold or shipped subject N/A There were no recalls
to recalls for safety and health reasons. concerning the provision.
BB AE IR IR B6.1 EENEEXERBEHPRL2EEREHMAR TER WEEEMLEmNEME -
WEY B D
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints N/A There were no validated
received and how they are dealt with. complaints received during
the Reporting Period.
RS A BIRIE B6.2 BERANE B RRENIRFEE AREEH X - TiEA REBEEHA - WEKDE

KPI B6.3

BAS A IE15 B6.3
KPI B6.4

RS IEIRB6.4
KPI B6.5

RS2 AR IR 1R B6.5

Description of practices relating to observing and
proteoting intelleotual property rights.

Tt B o S R (R[S AN EE RS A D 1E O o
Descnptlon of quality assurance process and recall
procedures

? E:Eﬁuiﬁ *ﬂ;&guuﬁll&%&

Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

%Lﬁ%%éﬂ%h&% R - LA RARRAETT R
BERIE -

T BB RUIRAF ©
Product Responsibility

EmAE

N/A Recall procedures are not
relevant to our operations.

3 [0 Wi 72 o B R AP A A5 2 A

7 o
Product Responsibility

EmEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERBGERE

Description Reference

Ei:pus 2

Aspect B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

BEB7: RES

General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies: and (b) compliance with  Anti-Corruption
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

— MR BRADT IERRRR B0 BGGEROAREN @B ko) RES
BITHETABEAZENRBERZLROINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt N/A

practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcome of the
cases.

B B2 B R IR BT .1 RERBAEETASAEEREVESEENES TEF
FAARME BB KA R ©

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Anti-Corruption
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored.

RS IR BT .2 Ry EAE b M BRRR AR TRERSE . RES

Aspect B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

EHEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the ~ Giving Back to the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates Community
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

—MRIE BRANTRSERTHRETASEMELRFEN BELR
EREEBESEE BALEN =B -
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Giving Back to the
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, Community
sport).

RA5R 45 IR TZ B8 I ERER (NHE RREEE SIHFRK R BELR
ik 87) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the Giving Back to the
focus area. Community

BB E IR IRB8.2 EEIHEMBAER (NS ELERE) o E) fad
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The Directors hereby present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Financial Year 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s principal activity is the provision of concrete demolition
service in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a subcontractor.
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding of its
subsidiaries. The names and principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the Financial Year 2018.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
review of the Group’s business, a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, environmental policies of the
Group, compliance with laws and regulations by the Group, and
indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out
on pages 5 to 12 of this report. This discussion forms part of this
directors’ report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group, as extracted from the prospectus of the company dated 29
November 2016 (the “Prospectus”) and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the last five year is set out on page
124 of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The Group’s results for the Financial Year 2018 and the financial

positions of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 1283.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend in
respect of the Financial Year 2018.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
Financial Year 2018 amounted to HK$20,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Financial Year 2018 in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,720,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
672,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

Details of movements in the share capital during the Financial
Year 2018 are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Report of Directors
EEEWRE

EEENREN T /\FURFENREREERESUH
W

TREBREBORE

AEBIZEBDEIEERD BERNEERBPMRRRLTHF
R - ARBWEEXBREMB AR ZIREZR - LB
REAMEHREZEBHNRE P BEHRERME 12 REENE
EEBUER T \FUBRFELESRED -

EREBA RGN RS RELZEEBNE T TREDNT
BEAEE DR - AN B R = 2R R R A E M
AEENRERER AEERRZERREANARBARASE
BEBARROATREERAR IR AREESZ12EMEHNE
BENWEOMPEN R wmRALEETEREHN 500

MR
BEEARRAHR/ T —ARF+ A+ AANBRER (1R
RER]) RARRRBEREFENGS P IREROAEEH

ETEXRS BERAGMBENAREE 1248 - ABEDL
BREERERAMBRERN D -

FERKRE

AEER T N\FHRFEZEE  ARARBRAEER
Z BTN BNEC4E123 B 2GS B]MRA o
EETEFIN T \FUBRFRERNRAKE -

B

AEER T — \FPBFEFER 2 & E R EAMBF720,000
BIT °

M BERERE

AEEYE BEERER-_Z-\FHRFENEHFIBFH
RERE B IRKRM L3

P& <
RZZFE-—NFE+ZA=+—H ARQAREETRAA6,720,000
BT AR #TE RS E /672,000,000 - FREE0.018
=

RZZE—N\FHBFERNZRANSEF BN G E T REKM
190

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE

51



52

Report of Directors
EEEWRE

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Financial Year 2018 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66 of this
report and note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had no distributable
reserves available for distribution to its shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 22
November 2016 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme are summarised in Appendix IV to
the Prospectus. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid and
effective following the Transfer of Listing and will be implemented
in full with the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme and there was no share option outstanding as at
31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 2018
or subsisted at the end of the Financial Year 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Financial Year 2018.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Financial Year 2018 and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Shek On (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kuan Hong Kin Daniel

Independent non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny

Mr. Chow Chun To

Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 15 to 16 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the Financial Year 2018.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the Financial Year 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing on 16 December 2016 and will continue thereafter
until terminated in accordance with the terms of the agreement.
Non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a term of three years commencing on 22
November 2016 and can be renewed in accordance with our
articles of association and the applicable Listing Rules.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment compensation other than the statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of
their independence in accordance with the requirements of Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and all independent non-executive Directors are considered to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue
to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
The Directors to retire by rotation every year shall include (so far as
necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation)
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-
election. Any further Directors so retire shall be those of the other
Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors
on the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot.

In accordance with article 108(a) of the articles of association of
the Company, Mr. Cheung Shek On, Mr. Chan Yuk Sing and Mr.
Kuan Hong Kin Daniel will retire at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has taken out directors and officers liability
insurance to cover liabilities arising from legal action against the
Directors up to the date of this report.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor any
of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have
with the Group during the Financial Year 2018.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors with
reference to their responsibilities, workload, time devoted to the
Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors and other
employees who have made valuable contribution to the Group
may also receive options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Name of director Nature of interest
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%zﬁiiﬁﬂkéﬁéﬂﬁﬁ - HEROREEREZEER

RZE-—NF+-A=+—H ARAEEREIZTHAERN
ARBREEMEEEE (E& R ES KRB G ([EH5 KB
BRG] EXVED) Z Bt - R REEE T EERER S
REIEGRBIEXVEETRFESD MAEME RN R R FT2
@ SOR B (BRERERE = RS EP B B RS E R E FiR
RER 2 ERIORR)  HRHEN AR AREZ 5 NS ES
FEB2GAEFEZERM 2 #am KORA - SRR £ AR B 8%
THEZ EHBETAESETES R ZHRES R (MRESTA D)
BHMEARNAI LR SRR IAT

) RAEXFAEBRZER

Percentage of
shareholding

Number of shares
held/interested in

BE ek

EERE EEME W7 2 B BRESL
Mr. Cheung Shek On Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 189,000,000 28.125%
RBLR L REPRB R s (et 1) 189,000,000 28.125%
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 189,000,000 28.125%
PR A 58 £ RERBE R (Hit2) 189,000,000 28.125%
Notes: et -

1. Mr. Cheung Shek On (“Mr. Cheung’) beneficially owns 100% of 1. k85 L5t 4 ([5K 5F 4 ]) & @ # & Sino Continent Holdings

the issued share capital of Sino Continent Holdings Limited (“Sino
Continent”) which in turn owns 189,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Cheung is deemed to
be interested in the same number of the Shares held by Sino
Continent.

2. Mr. Chan Yuk Sing (“Mr. Chan’) beneficially owns 100% of the
issued share capital of Supreme Voyage Limited (“Supreme
Voyage”) which in turn owns 189,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares held by Supreme
Voyage.

(i)  Short positions in ordinary shares of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, there
is no interests or short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO).

Limited ([ Sino Continent /) 2 &5 £ %778 28 - i1 Sino Continent
Al # 7 189,000,000 88 7 2 7] Z AR ° 1R 1% 7% 55 R A1 K (%1 -
KoL L A Sino Continent 76 HI18(F12¢ B & (7 F 7 B 122 °

2 B E K54 ([BF 5E 4£]) B 2 # B Supreme Voyage Limited
(I Supreme Vooyage /) £ 58 2 %77/ 7 + i1 Supreme Voyage Al
#E A 189,000,000 8 7 2 7] i iR - IRIXFZ 5 REIE X0 - BF
FELE#R I Supreme Voyage #5 5 HIFEIFIEL B AR (7 F Az ©

i) REQFAZBERZAXR

BREXHEEEN RZE-NF+_RA=+—H #
BEENARAEZBTHABRANRA sk E A HE5H
EEREZRMEGERGIEXVE) 2B - BRI R
EEFETEERRIORR -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

FTERRRELTAROREBROOEER LA

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2018, MESAE - —N\F+ZA=1+—H8 BAEARRES
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the RE ;zﬁﬂl/\,%@l\ ' Tﬁ‘ AL/ E gﬁéﬂ AR E R 5 sk AE
following persons/entities have an interest or a short position in the Brgrleakr =] uEﬁ'BMfE BEAFLMPBERIIFEII6HRAFE AR
shares or the underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the AE Mz ERIOKE -
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO:
(i) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: i) REATAEZBERZHFER:
Percentage
Number of of total issued
shares held/ Long/short  share capital of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest interested in position the Company
ERANE
¥E/BA ERITRAE
BRREH s RENROEBE "E KA BENEIL
Sino Continent Beneficial owner 189,000,000 Long 28.125%
EmEE A TR
Supreme Voyage Beneficial owner 189,000,000 Long 28.125%
EmfA A e
Applewood Developments Limited Beneficial owner 126,000,000 Long 18.75%
EmfEE A TR
Ms. Luk Pui Kei Peggy (Note 1) Interest of spouse 189,000,000 Long 28.125%
BEJRHE 2+ (A7t 1) B R TR
Ms. Cho Bik Nung (Note 2) Interest of spouse 189,000,000 Long 28.125%
BERALL (MiH2) Il B = e
Mr. Kwok Shun Tim Interest in a controlled 126,000,000 Long 18.75%
corporation (Note 3)
FANE T & NN e e
(K17#3)
Ms. Yip Nga Wan (Note 4) Interest of spouse 126,000,000 Long 18.75%
EREL L (Hit4) [N e
Notes: Kt
1. Ms. Luk Pui Kei Peggy, the spouse of Mr. Cheung, is deemed 1. RIZE S RIE RG] - K5 E2 IEEEIR L 1+ 42 AR K

(i)

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

under the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr.
Cheung is deemed to be interested.

2. Ms. Cho Bik Nung, the spouse of Mr. Chan, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Chan is
deemed to be interested.

3. Mr. Kwok beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of
Applewood Developments Limited (“Applewood Developments”).
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Kwok is deemed to be interested in the
same number of the Shares held by Applewood Developments.

4. Ms. Yip Nga Wan, the spouse of Mr. Kwok, is deemed under
the SFO to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Kwok is
deemed to be interested.

Short positions in shares of the Company:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Directors are not aware of any other persons/entities who
had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
position in any shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Financial Year 2018, the percentage of revenue attributable
to the Group’s major customers is set out below:
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Percentage of

revenue

L ONER 4

The largest customer BARF 19.27%
The total of the five largest customers AREF AR 43.47%

For the Financial Year 2018, the percentage of cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and subcontractors is
set out below:

REZZE—N\FHREE ASEXBHEHEFED SEELNR
BRABDLEZ T :

Cost of services
Percentage of

total cost

R 75 BR A&

WEAEDL

The largest supplier and subcontractor BABEEESBE 14.62%
The total of the five largest suppliers and AAHEE RS BEE

subcontractors 29.92%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers,
major suppliers and major subcontractors noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Financial Year 2018, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
that are not exempted under Rule 20.71 of the GEM Listing Rules
or Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company maintained the public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules and the Listing Rules during the Financial Year
2018 and has continued to maintain such float as at the date of
this report.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As at 31 December 2018, as notified by the compliance adviser
of the Company, Ample Capital Limited (“Ample”), save as the
compliance agreement dated 23 November 2016 entered between
the Company and Ample, neither Ample, its directors, employees
and associates had any interest in relation to the Group which
is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules and the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 17
to 28 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under
various laws. The laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group include, among others, Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Air Pollution
Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation
(Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong), Noise Control
Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance
(Chapter 132 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group recognises
the importance of environmental protection and has implemented
various environmental protection measures in order to minimise
the operation impact on the environment and natural resources.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATION

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company
and its subsidiaries during the Financial Year 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and article of association of the
Company, the Directors and other officers, for the time being
acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified
out of the assets the Company against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, or other officer
of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal in which judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. Such permitted indemnity provision is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Financial Year 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Financial Year 2018.
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AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”) was appointed by
the Directors as the auditors of the Company. HLB will retire,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by HLB.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event after the reporting period of the Group.
By Order of the Board

Cheung Shek On

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR

HLB Bt FHm AR A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KINGLAND GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingland
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key

audit matters

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts
and contract assets

Refer to Note 2.20, Note 5, Note 7 and Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements

We identified recognition
of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and
contract assets as a key
audit matter as significant
management’s estimations e
and judgements are involved

in the determination of the
outcome of construction
contracts and the progress
towards completion of e
construction works.

Our audit procedures in relation to
recognition of revenue and costs from
construction contracts and contract
assets mainly included:

Reviewing the contract sum and
budgeted costs to respective signed
contracts and budgets prepared by
management;

Understanding from management
about how the budgets were
prepared and the respective progress
towards completion of construction
works were determined;

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of
progress towards completion of
construction works by obtaining the
certificates issued by customers or
payment applications;

e Testing the actual costs incurred on
construction works;

e Assessing the reasonableness of the
budgets by comparing the actual
outcome against management’s
estimation of similar contracts; and

e Assessing the appropriateness and
adequate of the disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B AR

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P0O5769

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019

Independent Auditors’ Report
B XA RS

. HEERAFKELESTHTERNBEEIELAm - XIR
BREDRNESRE BERAFEESEANBR AR
MBATHEN KMARERYE BERENFELE
RNELEBARRE HMESRASTFESEARTHEEN - 8
BUEBAREMBETRFEREIZBGAMBRERSD
MERIE - MAMBRELNR MBI ESER - E54&
i IEREE AR E BB IEFTES B ERTERRE A1
RREFERBEAATREH BEEEBESELLE -

o FEBANBEENBE2ESN  GBERANT 0
BEER - RS BRELE S RRABZ S0
-

EEBNERIEREDNTBENERTERE
ENEFERE  UWEHGAMBRRERERL -BF
BEEEEFNAR BEBEMNT EERBRE AR

HEE -

HiY i Bk 9

BEEHREZLZE G (HPERE) Bt 3HE  BHETHER
REFHERER 252U BRESERMERETRNON
EREEHE AN (T E RBRIK ©

EETREZZBSHELRE BHEZCTaBRBILIED
HEERER THAKRFERAURKAERASSTEETEY
MOMEREREMER  URBHEGEREE(MER) -

ftEAEZZBEBENERT EEEEHANREE MR
RNEBAEZHERNEE  AMBEKEREZER BFEX
ZEN R E PR ZFZ R BIDERIOER T AT AR EZ
EEH FEBRBEINBRAT  WEEBRBEESHETE
BRERERNAEERRBHEENARN G  AIFFRES
EERETEEZEE -

HARB T REEI RSB R EEZ AR -

BEEEHMELRERD A
X B A

SRR
HEFEZERE  PO5769

B —E-NF=R=+NH

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE

63



64

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBRERAEMEERGER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Net impairment losses on financial assets and
contract assets

Administrative and other operating expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners of
the Company

Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes
B =

11

Fr B M BWROAEKED

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
147,413 186,168
(95,727) (130,665)
51,686 55,503

632 67

(207) =
(28,370) (25,027)
23,741 30,543

= (104)

23,741 30,439
(3,558) (5,416)
20,183 25,023
3.00 3.72




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Contract assets

Amounts due from customers for contract work
Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Capital and reserves

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Amounts due to directors
Tax payable

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

As at 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\F+-A=+—8H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET T
BE
ERBEE
L ER S 13 15,414 15,020
ﬁﬁﬁé
AHEE 15 29,395 =
riwﬁz%)fﬁml%%?k 16 - 7,651
5 R EMEKRFIE 17 65,697 65,101
TH&Z@WE 612 =
BIKIFRITER 18 10,106 10,014
RELKREEED 18 26,464 36,404
132,274 119,170
EEHAE 147,688 134,190
EH
AATEE AELER
BARHE
(&S 19 6,720 6,720
s 121,044 104,561
BT 127,764 111,281
=L
FFRBEE
Hi3EmeaE 756 721
EIER IR 22 1,298 1,620
2,054 2,341
=
B 5 Rk H M RS FIE 23 17,353 19,014
ENEERE 24 22 22
FERRIE 495 1,532
17,870 20,568
BEAE 19,924 22,909
EEREEAE 147,688 134,190
REBEEZRE 114,404 98,602
BEELABERRBAERS 129,818 113,622

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019

and signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Shek On
R
Director

B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

RAMBHREN_-F
T THTIEERREE

Chan Yuk Sing
R E B¢
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Y e E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

Share Share Merger Retained Total
capital premium reserve earnings equity
R R EE ROHEE RERF wER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THAT THT THET
(Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20)
(P 5E19) (HizE20) (HizE20)
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—A—HH
e 6,720 44,658 16,313 18,567 86,258
Profit and total comprehensive income A& FI & 2 EIRA A5
for the year - - - 25,023 25,023
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F+=R
=T—H#&ER 6,720 44,658 16,313 43,590 111,281
Effect on initial application of HKFRS 9 B R [E & B 1 15 3 55 &8
and HKFRS 15 FORRBBHBREE
FIEREE 7 5 - - (3,700) (3,700)
Balance at 1 January 2018 R=Z-N\F—A—HKN
& 6,720 44,658 16,313 39,890 107,581
Profit and total comprehensive income  F A& FI &k 2 EIK AL
for the year - - - 20,183 20,183
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=ZE-\F+=A
= l: 0F 373 6,720 44,658 16,313 60,073 127,764
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIPMI S E R Z SR A MR AR IBD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in pledged bank deposit
Repayment of finance leases

Interest paid on finance leases

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE
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(3,589) (1,490)

136 14
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395 -
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- (4,010)

= (104)
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Kingland Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 January 2015
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its shares have
been listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 16
December 2016.

The Company’s shares are currently listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Dealings in the shares on the
Main Board commenced on 12 June 2018 pursuant to the
approval granted by the Stock Exchange for the transfer of
listing of the shares from the GEM to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 22 August 2018, the name of the
Company has been changed from “Sing On Holdings
Limited” to “Kingland Group Holdings Limited” and the
change of the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company
from “BRELZERBER AT to “RBEEZERAR QA
The certificate of incorporation on change of name of the
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands on 28 August 2018 and the certificate of
registration of alteration of name of registered non-Hong
Kong company was issued by the Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong on 14 September 2018.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands and the Company’s principal
place of business is Flat B, G/F., Fu Hop Factory Building,
209 and 211 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
is principally engaged in the provision of concrete
demolition services in Hong Kong and Macau mainly as a
subcontractor.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“‘HKS$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company, and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with HKFRSs requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the accounting policies of the
Group.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(0 New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The Group has applied the following new
and amended standards, improvements and
interpretation for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(FRIC) — Int 22  Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Amendments to  Classification and Measurement

HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment

Transaction

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendmentsto  As part of the Annual

HKAS 28 Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle
Amendmentsto  Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property

Except as described below, the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
an interpretation in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

HKFRS 15, establishes a new five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations,
changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of
initial application, 1 January 2018. Any
difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings
and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with
the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the
Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 18 “Revenue” and
HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the
following major sources which arise from
contracts with customers:

o Revenue from provision of concrete
demolition services which arise from
contracts with customers

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations resulting from application of HKFRS
15 is disclosed in note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption (continued)
The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January
2018. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
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BB EAE 15 HAEESA RN
RS
TR =T —)\E—A—AHGAH
BRRENEROSEEL - FEEDY S
HE B R R IR -

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December Impact of 1 January
2017 HKFRS 15 2018*
B
BEBHK
KRR s 2R
—E—+F BEBHK F155% R
rEEEar=1>H &2 A —E-N\F
2| F155% M —A—H
REE b4 K BR 4 *
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT FHT
Current assets REEE
Contract assets EREE = 22,220 22,220
Amounts due from customers for EUWEF & 4 Ti2 5018
contract work 7,651 (7,651) -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e W GRIE 65,101 (18,264) 46,837
Current liabilities REEE
Tax payable e HIE 1,532 (609) 923
Capital and reserves EAR#E
Retained earnings R & F 43,590 (3,086) 40,504

The amounts in this column are before the
adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining whether, how
much and when revenue is recognised. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a
customer obtain control of goods or series.
Determining the timing of the transfer of control
over time requires judgement. Management
assessed that revenue from provision of
concrete demolition services is recognised
over-time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption (continued)

In relation to construction contracts previously
accounted under HKAS 11, the Group
continues to apply output method in estimating
the performance obligations satisfied up to date
of initial application of HKFRS 15. Under HKAS
11, contract costs are recognised as expenses
by reference to the stage of completion,
which is measured by reference to work
performed to date as a percentage of total
contract value. Under HKFRS 15, costs that
related to satisfied performance obligations are
expensed as incurred. In addition, at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 15, retention
receivables previously included in trade and
other receivables are now included under
contract assets. Accordingly, upon adoption
of HKFRS 15, contract assets were increased
by approximately HK$22,220,000, amounts
due from customers for contract work, trade
and other receivables and tax payable were
decreased by approximately HK$7,651,000,
HK$18,264,000 and HK$609,000 as at 1
January 2018, respectively, which resulted in
a decrease in opening retained earnings at 1
January 2018 by approximately HK$3,086,000,
after net of tax effect of approximately
HK$609,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(i)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers — Impact of adoption (continued) (i)  BEYERE ifﬂﬁ RIS 2 I=E-I=r=3 0l:00/4
Summary of effects arising from initial & — KR (R) §
application of HKFRS 15 BHIXFER §/§Eﬂi§$ﬁ¢$ﬁﬂﬁ 1555 R EE £ 1Y
The following tables summarise the impacts HENE
of applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s TR E R B A MRS ERE 155K E AR
consolidated statement of financial position EER_E-—N\FE+_A=1+—"BHEAH
as at 31 December 2018 and its consolidated BRRERERAEENGESBEREME
statement Qf proﬂt and loss and other FRHS NS E . AT EMED L,
cpmplrehenswe income for the current year. BIETER o
Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
Impact on the consolidated statement of HiraMBRRKNTE -
financial position:
Amounts
without
application
As reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
EEREE
B 5 i 15 2E Bl
2 5, AR FISHMESHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
Contract assets BHEE 29,395 (29,395) -
Amounts due from customers for FEMZE)E A H TR
contract work - 4,441 4,441
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H e IR 65,697 25,081 90,778
Tax recoverable CIER R 612 96 708
Amounts due to customers for ENEFEAIENRIE
contract work - 1,311 1,311
Tax payable eI 495 (73) 422
Retained earnings REBEF 60,073 (1,015) 59,058
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit HircEakEt2AREROFE
or loss and other comprehensive income:
Amounts
without
application
As reported Adjustments  of HKFRS 15
BEREE
B 5 5 o5 2E Bl
M2 FAE F15HKENSE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHT
Gross profit EH 51,686 (4,879) 46,807
Income tax expenses FECY 1 3,558 (778) 2,780
Profit for the year FREN 20,183 (4,101) 16,082
The explanations of the above changes E/\ZJS¢ EE AR BH S RE R H‘J%w%ﬁ(@
affected in the current year by the application SHENFENRME) BAFEL
of HKFRS 15 as compared to HKAS 11, HKAS ) 185ﬁ&$ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%§ﬁ'ﬁ§ FEN A EEERE
18 and the related interpretations are similar to BREUR EXFH#AESKEAN T — N\F—
the explanations set out above for describing A —BRENB BB IREERIZE 155705
the adjustments made to the consolidated RAEMBARRRIELOFAERE

statement of financial position at 1 January
2018 upon adoption of HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

(i)

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS
9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets
and lease receivables and (3) general
hedge accounting. The Group has applied
HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provision set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model)
retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018.
The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening retained earnings, without
restating comparative information. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
(“‘HKAS 39”).

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
and at fair value through profit or loss. These
supersede HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-
maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics.
Under HKFRS 9, the classification for all of
the Group’s financial assets, including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposit
and cash and cash equivalents, and financial
liabilities, including trade and other payables
and amount due to directors, measured at
amortised cost remain the same. The carrying
amounts for all financial assets and financial
liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (continued)
Impairment under ECL model
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a
lifetime ECL for all contract assets and trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually and/or collectively using
a provision matrix with appropriate grouping
based on same risk characteristics.

Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired, ECL for other financial
assets at amortised cost, including other
receivables and bank balances, are assessed
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there
have been no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, additional credit loss
allowance of approximately HK$732,000 has
been recognised against retained earnings.
The additional loss allowance is charged
against the respective asset.

All loss allowance as at 31 December 2017
reconciled to the opening loss allowances as
at 1 January 2018 are as follows:

e R RAR M
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Trade and other

At 31 December 2017 — HKAS 39

Amount remeasured through opening
retained earnings

At 1 January 2018 - HKFRS 9

Contract assets receivables
B REAM
EHNEE W FRIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
RZT—tF+=-A=+—H
— ARG AR E 3958 = -
ERBVRBRBFENGFEZ
&% 149 583
R=Z—N\&F—A—H
— BB BREEAFE IR 149 583

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The following table summarises the impacts of
transition to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings at
1 January 2018.

BEXRERERMBRELENFTIRAELN
FERE

TR R ER M HRELERNFE R BES
“E-N\F-A-HORBARNELENTE

Retained earnings
Recognition of impairment loss
Tax effect

Impact at 1 January 2018

HK$’000
T

REEF
TR EE 18 (732)
Bgsea 118
RZZE-N\F—A—HOEE (614)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHEEEEGHE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 22 VBHBXREIRBEEEH(E)
(continued)
(iv)  Impacts on opening consolidated statement of (v)  JFEFFATE FTERIET B4R A B At R K Ay &
financial position arising from the application of Z
all new stanaards
As a result of the changes in the Group’s ARl AEESHEREES  HYGRAH
accounting policies above, the opening BRRAKREBETEN - TRINTHAZZERN
consolidated statement of financial position SEEEBRANAE TXEFHFENIEE
had to be restated. The following table shows WABIEEA -

the adjustments recognised for each of the
line items affected. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been

included.
31 December
2017 1 January
As originally 2018
presented HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 Restated
—E—tF
+=A BRI® ERHE —B-N\F
SEr=[ |EER HREER —H—H
REE27 #1555 XL &EY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
Current assets hRBEE
Contract assets BREE = 22,220 (149) 22,071
Amounts due from customers for  EEF A X TIZFE
contract work 7,651 (7,651) - -
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E e WA 65,101 (18,264) (583) 46,254
Tax recoverable AU EIFiE - - 8 8
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred taxation RAETIE 1,620 - (110) 1,510
Current liabilities RBEE
Tax payable TR 1,532 (609) - 923
Reserves fititE
Retained earnings RE & 43,590 (3,086) (614) 39,890
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

V)

New and amended standards and
interpretations in issue but not yet effective and
not been early adopted

A number of new and amended standards
and interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for the year ended
31 December 2018 and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to Definition of Material®
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment,
HKAS 19 Curtailment or Settlement!
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint
Venture'
Amendments to Definition of a Business*
HKFRS 3
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation’
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015 - 2017
Cycle!
HK(FRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021.

i Effective for the business combinations and

assets acquisitions for which the acquisition date
is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020.

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. FEETHHEBEGE)

22 EHBRESBREEEN(E)

(V)

E A {E 15f 2K 234 R T A HE-F IR I #T AT K
BEETERR 2 FE

IR RS IERTER R B E B R M - 2
REBEEZZ—N\F+ZA=+—HILEFEL
ER b EA A ARE Y EIRF R AZ ST EL
S

FEMBmEREN  HE

165

ERMBREEN RBRALS

FATH

BB ST ENEIR EANESS
REBGEIAER

EXLACHENS)

BB GTEAE19% FENEET - RS E!
(BFTA)

BB G EAFE28Y REENAIRASEERN
(BFTA) R

ERRBREER  EBHTR

ERLACHEN)

ERUBREEL  REEFEHELAMHE

EXeLACCHIP:S)

EEPBREEL < REFEHEBANFNKE

FI0REES BREZEDN

SRR 2855 BEHERLE?
(BFTA)

BERMBMEERN  ABUBREEN=T
(BRTA) —HEE-Z—+ER

HFEE

&5 (ARG BHRE FMESREENTREEE!

72EZ8%9)

—REE23H

i R=F— A 55— F— A st X B IR B E ST H
P&

2 FFRE H A 20 A 12 F 45 49 F R IR 3L

g R=F=—F—F— A& e FERE

4 HRUEABRR - FE—FF——HELU%E
B4 # B 184 2 B B 4 B 26 2 12 Y R T & 0F
REEWEEH

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE

77



78

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

V)

New and amended standards and
Iinterpretations in issue but not yet effective and
not been early adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. It distinguishes leases and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. Subject to
limited exceptions for short-term leases and
low value assets, distinctions of operating
and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees. However, the standard does not
significantly change the accounting of lessors.

Application of HKFRS 16 will result in the
Group’s recognition of right-of-use assets
and corresponding liabilities in respect of the
Group’s lease arrangements. These assets
and liabilities are currently not required to be
recognised but certain relevant information
is disclosed as commitments to these
consolidated financial statements.

As set out in note 26(b), the total operating
lease commitment of the Group as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$3,380,000. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low
value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 “Lease” and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease
which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. Furthermore, the Group intends
to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee
and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained earnings
without restating comparative information.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new standards and
amendments will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

24

2.5

Principles of consolidation

) Subsidliaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

(i)

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a net basis.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end
of that reporting period;

o income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or lease term,
where applicable, as follows:

— Plant and machinery 25%
— Furniture and fixtures 20%
— Office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subjected to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Financial assets

()

(i)

(i)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), or
through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

. Fair value through other comprehensive
income: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When
the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses
are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

(i)

()

Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

° Fair value through profit or loss:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses)
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on
a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables and
contract assets.

Impairment on other receivables is measured
as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable
has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9 Financial assets (continued)

()

Impairment (continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of, a financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations.

o actual or expected significant changes
in the operating results of the debtors.

° significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debtors, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group
and historical credit loss experience.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

A financial asset is credit impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

v)

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies
its financial assets as financial assets at
FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement at initial recognition did
not change the adoption of HKFRS 9, see
description above. Subsequent to the initial
recognition, loans and receivables were
subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each
reporting period whether there was objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets was impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets was impaired and
loss allowance were incurred only if there was
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) had an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
could be reliably estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Financial assets (continued)

W) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continuea)
Assets at amortised cost
For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that had
not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset was reduced and
the amount of the loss was recognised in profit
or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the loss allowance decreased and the
decrease could be related objectively to an
event occurring after the loss allowance was
recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised loss allowance was
recognised in profit or loss.

2.10 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade
receivables. Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against credit impairment loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts (if any).

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHEME(#E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.16 Current and deferred income tax 2.16 HEVHARIEFEFTSH

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of each reporting period in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluate positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Deferred income tax B2

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the BREFMSHAIABEEREENABNNEREE
liability method, on temporary differences arising MBEEGFEMBERERNEEENEZEEmMEENE
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and E%’l‘i%i%%(%ﬂ%%ﬁ o FAT - (IR E R IE & &R
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial BEREENYLHR - BN THER - BRLEMSHIR

statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

217

2.18

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlement to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
plan and pays contributions to a privately
administered pension insurance plan on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

(i) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of such obligation can be
made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19

2.20

Contingent liabilities and continent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resource will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Group uses a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract;

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract; and

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2. FEETHHEBEGE)

2.19

2.20

FREBERIAREE
FARBBIEANBEEHMAREENEE  UE
BESKGBKTIBURN —RRE R AKEE (K
AE) A4 B IEAKE ] ST 2G| A EE E 4
TTRERETE c AR BENMAERARE EENEMHM
SIHHREEME EARATETTERELEEIR -
SETSRAEASEWEEMRERER -

AR EW R LR S M IR T RE
i it £ R B9 AT BE 1A 2 T G B AT B 3R B R
Bt FRERER SR -

KABEDRABEEAMAREEZEE k&
FHEERIRAEE T2 EH N —HRZ 4 A
BEREE ORI FE M H IR N HIRAFREE o

HREER TR MEREEN @R AR AR ET
ERFEERN RSV BERRMER - ERBEMERA
AEERTE  BENTER -

Uy 255 7 22

AR AR M R LA A AR [R) 82 P A S s B m S AR 7%
WL FESERRAEEBRREZEE M
KRG AWM RE - ABM S ARERBR
BIRRERU S -

. F—% BREEPITINEH

. F_F BAANPHNENET

. F=H  BEERZER:

. FMY  BRSGERIEEENTHRELE
%R

«  EEH: REBEREOREE (At

REEBHBREENFE6R  AEERETE
A (SRtt) BER W Es - BIERRT E B A E 548
RARY S m S IRFS A0 [ HIHE | 98 T 5 P S RE R et ©

B4 %18 — EPA MRS fn sk — TR AR AR (S —4it
PAREE Mk RS 3 — R ARBARMEAREE MK
AR 75 -

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE

91



92

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not unconditional.
It is assessed for impairment in accordance with
HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Revenue from construction contracts is described
in the accounting policy on construction contracts
below.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis using the effective interest method,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHEME(#E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Construction contracts 221 BEEH

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the contract
relates to construction work under the control of the
customer and therefore the Group’s construction
activities create or enhance an asset under the
customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the output
method, based on direct measurement of the value
of contract work performed, provided that the value
of contract work performed can be measured reliably.
The value of contract work performed is measured
according to the completion of specific detailed
components as set out in the contract. Variations in
contract work are recognised as contract revenue to
the extent that the modification has been approved
by the parties to the contracts and it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

2.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22

2.23

Construction contracts (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost
incurred plus an appropriate proportion of profits
after deducting progress payments and allowances
for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises construction
material costs, labour and overheads expenses
incurred in bringing the work-in-progress to its
present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the amount due
from customers for contract work for all contracts in
progress for which costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings. Progress billings not yet paid by customers
and retention are included within trade and retention
receivables. The Group presents as a liability the
amount due to customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which progress billings
exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses).

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables for the sale of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue from provision of concrete demolition
services is recognised based on the stage of
completion of the jobs, provided that the stage of
jobs completion and the gross billing value of the jobs
can be measured reliably. Progress billing is made
according to the stage of job completion by reference
to the work done as reviewed and approved by the
customers. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included in contract revenue
to the extent that they have been agreed with the
customer and are capable of being reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24

2.25

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception
at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and long-
term payables. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership at the
end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Group as lessee are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iif) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group

or;

e R RAR M
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2. FEETHHEBEGE)

2.24

2.25
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

@iy  the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(v  the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

2.

TEEHRERE (8)

225 BER (M)

)

R ERA T REER - B A —EE

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

(vil)

(il

—EBAS ERNBEAQRNKAS
TE(XEZ-BEENGLRF  HEARF
EAEENYE=MNCID)
ZERBRAREARRA-F=TMA
BhE:
—ERR—F-HERNAELE"
ME—ERRZE-—MEBOHBER
Al
ERAASKEREREEBREN

il

B N %3 T 5% #O BB 12 4R R AT

\

e o S
i
foiz /.

X (a) PT 38 Al A 4 il S HE R4

(43
ﬁl\

Ei\ 4

- /Imﬁ'

REBRSACAMEEKEATRESE
SEBABRBTFAEERAEE
BAF -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of
financial risks: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

(@  Interest rate risk

Other than bank balances with variable interest
rate, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets. Management does
not anticipate significant impact to interest-
bearing assets resulted from the changes in
interest rates, because the interest rates of
bank balances are not expected to change
significantly. The Group currently does not
hedge its exposure to the interest rate risk as
the management of the Group consider that
the risk is insignificant.

(b)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Macau and
Hong Kong with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities and transactions principally
denominated in HK$ and Macau Pataca
(“MOP”). The Group is exposed to currency
risk arising from currency exposures primarily
with respect to MOP, mainly attributable to
the exposure on outstanding receivables and
payables denominated in MOP.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s MOP
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

Assets BE
MOP

Liabilities aE
MOP

Most of the MOP denominated monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are held under the Group’s subsidiary
in Macau. As MOP is pegged to HK$, the
management of the Group consider that the
foreign currency risk is insignificant, and hence
they do not engage in any hedging activity.

RPIH

BPIHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZEZ=Z
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3. HBEERERE

3.1

BB E R
AEBENEBEGSEMBRERE - FXER SN
e 1.:. 7 3 B //lb@jﬁiﬂ&

AEENBERREETEZENS TS E
RBARBERNEBHERBNEETNZE -

(@  FIEERE
B R I R @0 SR 1T 45 8RO - 7N 42 [F 3 4 H Ath
EAEERE EEEBYTHEHARESHS
HA B EERREATZE  FRAYTEH
RITESRNN RS HIREREE) - NEER
H%]Iﬂﬂiﬁ HEARER  FRANEREE
REEBRRITTERX °

(b)  SMNEmfE
FEBTERRMAREELEER  ~&H
7( NEBEE ABRRRHEERNETR
F?%(F P& ) aHE - KEIEEWIR#}
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2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FAT

12,871 1,877

3,705 115
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3.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(©

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from contract assets,
trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposit and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations as at the reporting
dates in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In respect of trade and other receivables and
contract assets, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers and
counterparties. These evaluations focus on the
counterparty’s financial position, past history
of making payments and take into account
information specific to the counterparty as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the counterparty operates. Monitoring
procedures have been implemented to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under the ECL model
upon application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on its financial assets and contract
assets. In this regard, management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The loss allowance for trade and other
receivables and contract assets were
determined as follows:

At 31 December 2018
=t+-R
B 5 fEWRIR
H At FE WK IE

BREE

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Contract assets

Annual Report 2018
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BEREKREE (E)
31 BX¥RKREZE(E)

© 1FEREE
EERRETERGENEE BIHREME
WniE EERRTFERALRRERRESE
BY - WHFHREERE B AR HESHE
ReMEERBTHER ASEMEHNK
BEERRRZEEERGEMBRAKRE
HIEBRE(E ©
FARESHREMEWRBAREGHNEE - &
BHAMARTP REFH#EITEREETME -
ZEMAETIREF AN BSAR « BER
HEosk - WE R F 70 EE R A K&
FHBEHEBNKBERE CEBEERRF
VAR BRER BR 3E 7T B Uk 120 380 BR & 7% © kol -
REBRERBTEMBRELLEIFHREFR
BEHEEEBRERX (2T —+F : BEE4LE
BEEX)HESREERAGNEEEITR
Bt -t E BEERREAEENGE
ERBBERD o
B S REMBUKIANARENEEN BB
HBEEWT
Weighted
average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected Net carrying
rate amount credit loss amount
g9
HHEE
BRE BEREE BAHRFEER R A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FHET
1.07% 61,396 659 60,737
2.66% 4,329 115 4,214
0.56% 29,560 165 29,395
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. BBRAREE(HE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEBERBER @)
(©)  Credit risk (continued) © 1EEREEE)

The closing loss allowance for trade and other
receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2018 reconcile to the opening loss
allowance are as follows:

31 December 2017 —calculated —ZT—+F+-A=+—

under HKAS 39 H-REEE G2
39T HE
Amounts restated through ERBVRBRFNEY K
opening retained earnings Gk

RZZ—\F—H—HBHK
MR - RIEES
B IREXER|F OSRTE

Opening loss allowance at 1
January 2018 — calculated under
HKFRS 9

Increase in loss allowance FRARBERERNER
recognised in B N

profit or loss during the year

R=ZF—N\F+=A
==

At 31 December 2018

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on same risk characteristics.
The expected loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

BESREMBKRFEANRGNEER_F
—N\EFE+ A=+ HHIREERE RN

VEBREENEERNT :
Trade Other Contract
receivables receivables assets
Life-time ECL Life-time ECL Life-time ECL
(not credit (credit (not credit
impaired) impaired) impaired)
EZEWRE HitERRE EREE
ZHATEH 2HATEH 2HTEH
FEEA FEFR FEFR
(A EEERE) (EERE) (UEREERE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
468 115 149
468 115 149
191 - 16
659 115 165

RESHEUFEARGNEEMS  AKEE
ERBEMBMEENFORAL T ERE
HEMEEERTEEERE RFTEED
HEHMEREERDREARRARSHERAER
BE DB BBERETER R SHART
- MHBEXDEREBERFHROBE
BEMENENXME  WIRBALE T
ZRK A AE ) B AT RS 6 A S 1 B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

3.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(©

Credit risk (continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment
under the ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on other
receivables, pledged bank deposit and cash
and cash equivalents. Except for those which
had been determined as credit impaired, the
ECL on these assets are based on 12m ECL
as there have been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

The credit risk on other receivables is limited
because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors are of the
opinion the risk of default by the counterparties
of other receivables is not significant.

The credit risk of pledged bank deposit
and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with sound credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

As at 31 December 2018, 2 customers
(2017: 3 customers) which individually
contributed over 10% of the Group’s trade
and other receivables and contract assets.
The aggregate amounts of trade and other
receivables and contract assets from these
customers amounted to approximately 23% of
the Group’s total trade and other receivables
and contract assets as at 31 December 2018
(2017: 34%).

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with banks with
sound credit ratings or good reputation as
disclose above, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

@)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet their liquidity requirements in
the short and long term. Management believes
there is no significant liquidity risk as the
Group has sufficient financial cash and cash
equivalents to fund their operations.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of each
reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current rates at
the end each reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group may be required to pay:

At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE-NF+=A
Sr=[

Trade and other payables B 5 R H R FIE

Amounts due to directors ENEERE

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZF—tF+=A
=t+—8

Trade and other payables B 5 R H b e~ 5 IE

Amounts due to directors ENEEHRIE

e R RAR M
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3. HKEREKE

# (%)

31 MERBREZ(H)

@ REEZEE
AEENHRERTEHEER R RBHNRE
BeH K WHRARREEHFERANE €
#H NENERHEERBRBHESRT L&
BEME ARETEBERENERE S RRE
EEYRELEREES WHESEARS
BEeREM -
TRAMAEENEREBERSHREHRD
BT AT AR HBER - DR ARFTRIR SR
2 (BEERFTOFNES (BERZE) WS
HMARMENEF R A ENAE T ) RAEE
BYNOREEBRAGE :

On demand Total

or within Over undiscounted
one year one year cash flow Total

BRERS RTH
—£R —FNLE BRERELHE wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHBIT FHET FHBIT
17,353 - 17,353 17,353
22 - 22 22
17,375 - 17,375 17,375
19,014 - 19,014 19,014
22 - 22 22
19,036 - 19,036 19,036
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. B 7% L B i 28 (4
3.2 Capital management 32 EXxE®

The Group’s primary objectives when managing

ZXE@WQZ’SM@\EE B ERREAREELE

#Ee

capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders, to support the Group’s
stability and growth; to earn a margin commensurate
with the level of business and market risks in the
Group’s operations and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as the total
borrowings as at each year end divided by the total
equity as at each year end.

The gearing ratios of the Group are as follows:

AR R IR 4 @*&Ii%&"‘ilﬁ’ﬁ%i&
i“ﬁ BREX AR £ [BIE 2 O A5 K T R 5 A R AR
EHERMNE  THFRENERNEBUREES
PR

RERXAEERER  AREAEHBIRMNRR

MRS SR MERREEES  BITHKR - RGH
EERH & EENRIKES
AEBENAGBLEREREERN - L RRBREF

RARH B E %F%Lxﬁﬂifﬂiﬁﬂféé*ﬁ@ Eﬂﬁo

Total borrowings
Total equity

Gearing ratio
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2018 2017
—E-N\F —t
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FRET
BEEE i _
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of financial assets and contract

assets

Until 31 December 2017, management determines
the provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables. This estimate is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market
condition. Management reassesses the provision at
the end of each reporting period.

Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment
of the collectability of receivables from each
customer. In making the judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results
of follow-up procedures, customer payment trends
including subsequent payments and customers’
financial positions. If the financial conditions of the
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required.

Since 1 January 2018, the loss allowances for
financial assets and contract assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(b) Progress towards of completion of construction
works
The Group recognises its contract revenue over
time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the surveys
of work performed to date of the individual contract
of construction works relative to total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken in
construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the activity
is completed usually fall into different accounting
period. The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs and variation
orders prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Management regularly reviews
the progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

e R RAR M
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BT N\F—A—HE SREERGNEES
BEEDERGHEORR R BHEEXNRRKRIE
HoREREHR - AEERBELBERESL - R
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(b) EBEIRTREE

AEESERREMREMEXNBORENERER
—BREREAERES O YRIFZETE@ER
BHESEETIREHBSNEENASE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue and other income and gains recognised during the
year are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Revenue &
Provision of concrete demolition services R AR B TR E AR5 147,413 186,168
Other income and gains Heb g A & Wz
Sundry income HIEA 36 14
Interest income A B UA 206 14
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE KRS
plant and equipment 390 39
632 67
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHANKRSIF
customers
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FExT
Timing of revenue recognition &3 4 0] 3
Over-time R —ER R 147,413
Types of goods or services ERSiREER
Concrete demolition services SRR 1 3R ED AR A 147,413
Performance obligations for contracts with customers EFEHNEANERE

The Group provides concrete demolition services to
customers. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over-time as the Group creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. Revenue for these services is
therefore recognised over-time using output method, i.e.
based on surveys of the relevant services completed by
the Group to date with reference to certificates issued by
customers or payment applications. The directors of the
Company consider that output method would faithfully
depict the Group’s performance towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations in these
contracts under HKFRS 15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS AND 5.
SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 December 2018 and the expected timing of
recognising revenue are as follows:

—FR
—FUE

Within one year
Over one year

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the board of directors of the Company. The board of
directors regards the Group’s business as a single operating
segment and reviews consolidated financial statements
accordingly. Since this is the only operating segment of
the Group, no further analysis for segment information is
presented.

Geographical information
The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong and Macau,
and its revenue is derived from the following regions:

Revenue (by location of customers)
— Hong Kong
— Macau

&R
—RF

All of the Group’s non-current assets are located in Hong
Kong for both years.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

BEA
XFB

Customer A
Customer B

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Wi Rt AR KSR 5 EER ()

THREEFEANRTENEENRZE

KRB N\F+_A=+—HIEZEHTBEHNEECRE
PRk ER D AR ERK) R 5 (B B R U s O TR AR R A0 T

Concrete
demolition
services

IR 1 B AR A%
HK$’000

FET

30,733
4,795

DEER

TEEERARECHNARARBANEEG - EEFHRA
SENEBAE—KED0E  UHRENHREVHEREK -
HREAAEENE - KED0H REE2IHHREH
B —F DT o

AEETEREE R EE - MEKREKE A THE :

Wzt (REF FrEE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
134,861 184,489
12,552 1,679
147,413 186,168
AEEEHIERBEERMEFTEAEGURES ©
FEEFEH
HAREBAKRZBRI1I0%NETLREEFWT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
N/AFER1 34,659
28,400 48,800

! FE 5 e 25 30 FF A A ZE B AR W 2 10% LA _E ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on finance leases

7. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Included in cost of sales
Depreciation of owned assets
Staff costs

Included in administrative and other operating
expenses
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of owned assets
Depreciation of assets under finance lease
Operating lease rented on premises (Note)
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments

6. BEMRK
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
BMEREF S = 104
7. BREABEANEF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT FET
SHERANBIE
BEEENE 4,984 2,156
8 TRRA 27,006 35,920
TR R EAM &SRS BIE
Z SR & 720 600
BEEENE 1,407 2,107
MERETHNEENE = 173
MELEHERS (M) 4,122 3,285
BIKA (BIEESFHMH) 12,757 12,026

Note: Amount excluded directors’ quarters expenses of approximately
HK$969,000 (2017: HK$675,000) which are included in “Staff
costs, including directors’ emoluments” above.

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 8.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Retirement scheme contributions
— defined contribution plan

R EIHK
—E R &

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in
Hong Kong which comply with the requirements under the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance. All
assets under the scheme are held separately from the Group
under independently administered funds. Contributions to
the MPF schemes follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Fra o FREMEMEN

Kt SBIBEHAALXEIRAN (BREESHM)  NEEES
F 32 #49969,0008 7T (—ZF —+ 4 : 675,000 7T) °

BEEFHX  BREEEME

2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT T
38,424 46,434
1,339 1,512
39,763 47,946

AEBERBRGMERTED ([RIES ] FEHEDIHRE
EERERAERRTGE - ZA BB TNABEEERE
VEGEEREAEENEESRARE - aRoatEIH
FIRERTE R R BIRBIRATT o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

9. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9. EEREAMNEER

EERIETHAEHS
BEERFETHRABREZE_Z—N\FE_F
—tFE+ A=t HIEFENFHHINDOT :

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)
The remuneration of each director and the chief
executive for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 is set out below:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2ER R
Fik ENEF WAL TR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
2018 —E-N\E
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheung Shek On RBRELE

(Chairman and Chief Executive (FEETHAEH)

Offcer) . 1,929 - 18 1,047
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing REKESE - 1,920 - 18 1,938
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Kuan Hong Kin Daniel HEREE 188 - - - 188
Independent non-executive directors %17 EHTEE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny RRELE 224 - - - 224
Mr. Chow Chun To PRBEE 224 - - - 224
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph ERATE 224 - - - 224

860 3,849 = 36 4,745
2017 “E-tF
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Cheung Shek On RBLLAE

(Chairman and Chief Executive (FEFRTHAH)

Officer) - 1,622 160 18 1,800
Mr. Chan Yuk Sing BER KL . 1346 260 18 1624
Non-executive director HHTEF
Mr. Kuan Hong Kin Daniel HWERLAE 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive directors BV FEHiTEE
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRELE 216 - - - 216
Mr. Chow Chun To BRBxE 216 - - - 216
Mr. Yam Chiu Fan Joseph EBRLEE 216 - - - 216

828 2,968 420 36 4,252

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2017: nil). Neither
the chief executive nor any of the directors has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

RE-F—N\F+-A=+—AILEE AEEY
BREFL A EANS - FANAKEEIANE
RS RIEARBRE CT LT 8) B
E_2—\Et_A=T—ALFE HERIEH
BABREFHERRAERRAREANS (=2
—tE ) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

&),

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2017: two) of them are directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 whose emoluments are
disclosed above. The emoluments in respect of the
remaining three (2017: three) individuals for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

ESRARER (H)

(b)

AEREHFMAL
HE-_T-N\F+A=1+—HILFE EEHE=
FWALTHREBAREE(ZE—+F:MB) AF
MHEBER EX -BE_ZE-N\F+ZRA=+—HIt
FE #RTI=B(ZT—+F: =8) ALHNFHMN
T

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 2,833 2,392
Discretionary bonuses IEIEAL - 1,102
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B HEK 54 54
2,887 3,548

The emoluments fell within the following bands: HMNFATEE :

Number of individuals
AE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
Emolument band e E (5or)

Nil = HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T = 1,500,000 %8 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 7t = = 2,000,000 %8 7T - 1

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office as a director or management of any members
of the Group (2017: nil).

Annual Report 2018

RBE-_Z-/\F+_-_A=t—HILFE A5H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FEHAX
2018 2017
—E2-NF —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Current tax BN EA 18
Hong Kong BB
— Current year —ARFE 3,297 4,387
— (Over)/under-provision in prior year —BEFE GBERE) RBETR (30) 378
Macau R
— Current year —REE 503 -
— Over-provision in prior year — R FEREEE = (183)
3,770 4,612
Deferred tax (Note 22) ELERIE (M EE22) (212 804
Income tax expense FrefiEx 3,558 5,416

The Group is subjected to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of
16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at the rate of 8.25% for the first HK$2 million of
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits above HK$2 million. Other subsidiaries of
the Company are subjected to Hong Kong Profits Tax at the
rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to a tax incentive approved under Section 20 of
Decree Law No. 11/2016, Macau Complementary Tax is
levied at a fixed rate of 12% on the taxable income above
MOP 600,000.

BE—Z—tF+-_A=+—HLEFE AEEER
16.5% BT R MM E B FFH

R-E—NF=A-+—H BBULERB(CZ—+
FEHB BT (B75H) EHIER) ([EHIEZR]) 3| AF
SHMARE - - GHEER - NF=A -+ N\BER
RAERE TRXBTIEZTR REAMNSHEBRE &
B B E 8 E 22,000,000 7 7T i F 45 1% 8.25% H Fi R
B - KB 182,000,000 7T & i F 1 12 16.5% & B K 45
e AFEMAHFESHERNEET A R H G EE
1216.5% 15— R FIE -

Al BAEEL ARFHN—HHBRARAREE
2,000,000 7% 7T ) fi 51 & 557 B4 i 71 1% 8.25% B9 B 3 40 4 &
5B - K& B 182,000,000 7T B {7 51 FE 2R B0 Al iR
165% M EMMBBFER - BE=Z—/\F+=A
=+ HLEFE ARANEMKEBRAREE16.5%H
REREBNBBFER

BAFBPIES F11/20165% 2080 Fr L E M T B E -
S P9 AT 15 48 78 B4 41 48 18 600,000 38 P9 55 1) & 28 & Uk A 3%
12% [E] & B =B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10. Fi8HmX (&)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs AEBEBRAEHRANENORIERERAEEMNESHRER
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong EANERSECHNEENT

Kong profits tax rate as follows:

2018 2017
—2- % —E—t%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 B4 Al A 23,741 30,439
Calculated at a tax of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) R E16.5% (ZF—+F : 16.5%)
THE 3,917 5,023
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TR AENRI 2 F X 320 139
Income not subject to tax BAERBBA (34) -
Temporary differences previously not recognised &7 K fE R A5 |4 = 58 - 29
Effect of different tax rate of group entity operating 72 & 78 A 4h Bl A #E [ 48 & H S [
in jurisdiction other than Hong Kong BERTRABENTE (215) =
Others Hb (165) =
Tax concession MIAEER (235) =
(Oven)/under-provision in prior year BEFE GBERE) BETR (30) 225
Income tax expense Fr5 R F 2 3,558 5,416
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RER R EFRF TIIRIEA T EETE -
is based on the following data:
Earnings R
2018 2017
—2-N\% e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Profit for the year attributable to owners of M EEBRERNZFMS WA A
the Company for the purpose of basic A ANEAEN R
earnings per share 20,183 25,023
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
’000 000
T T &
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for  Btat & SR E AR F M5 &I @A
the purpose of basic earnings per share hniEF 5 672,000 672,000
The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings HREBE-Z—N\ER-_"ZE—+&+-_A=+—HItE
per share as there is no dilutive potential ordinary share in EABECHTBEEEL AR WEREFTRFINER

issue during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. BREARRAT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

SUBSIDIARIES 12. WEAF
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 December TERARZZE—N\F+_A=T—HHHNBARIRE :
2018:
Principal
Place of incorporation activities and Particulars of Percentage of
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation Issued share capital interest held
2R SRR R A ERRER FTEERREEHE  ERORARE st fl
Platinum Faith Limited (Platinum Faith”) Limited liability company incorporated Investment holding Ordinary share 100% (direct)
on 16 October 2014, the British Virgin United States dollar
Islands (the “BVI") (US$") 1,000
REERAR (58] RIZ-METATABERBRER REHER EBR1,000%7T 100% (E#)
BE(ERERAES]) MK (FExh)
BRAR
Alpha Eastern Holdings Limited (*Alpha Eastern Holdings’) Limited liability company incorporated Investment holding Ordinary share US$1 100% (direct)
on 22 January 2016, the BVI
SRERERAR ([ERER]) RIE-—RE-AZ+ZPHEEER REHER LRRIET 100% (E#)
TREFMRINERAR
SHR R T BEBRAF (translated as Kingland Limited liabilty company incorporated Provision of concrete Ordinary share 100% (indirect)
Concrete Driling Company Limited) (*Kingland Macau”) on 1 March 2006, Macau demolition services in MOP$25,000
Macau
EWERTERERAR ([RERM]) RZEERE= A—AERFFMAK RAMREERTRE  LBR25,00027%  100%(FEE)
URMAERAR MR
Kingland (Sino) Company Limited (*Kingland (Sino)’) Limited liability company incorporated Provision of concrete Ordinary share HK$3 100% (indirect)
on 16 January 2015, Hong Kong demolition services in
Hong Kong
S (RRE) BRAG ([R8 (K9 E)]) RZZ-RF- A+ BEFELR RERRIERLIFE ERRIET 100% (%)

RANABAT

%

SHRHEEZERAERAR

—E-N\FEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 1 January 2017
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2017
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposals

At 31 December 2017

Net book value
At 31 December 2017

Cost
At 1 January 2018
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year (Note 7)
Disposals

At 31 December 2018

Net book value
At 31 December 2018

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

e
R-B—tf-A-H
TR
it

RZE—+F+=RA
=t+—H

RifiE
R-B—tf-A-H
F A (A7)
it

RZZ—+F+=RA
=+—H

REFE
i S oy
=+-H

A
RZZ-N\F—HA—H
NE
HE

RZF-NF+=A
=t-A

2EHE
RZZ-\F-HA—H
FRSU (FEE7)
e

RZF-N\F1=A
=t-A
REFE
N
=t-A

Annual Report 2018

13. Y¥ - BERZHE
Plant and Furniture Office Motor

machinery and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
BE R BRREE RRERE AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THER THx T TiEx
16,479 107 138 11,506 28,230
6,636 991 65 1,894 9,586

- - - (1,820) (1,820)

23,115 1,098 203 11,580 35,996
12,321 25 16 5,271 17,633
2,156 60 35 2,185 4,436

- - - (1,093 (1,093

14,477 85 51 6,363 20,976
8,638 1,013 1562 5217 15,020
23,115 1,098 203 11,580 35,996
3,189 44 37 3,520 6,790

- - - (631) (631)

26,304 1,142 240 14,469 42,155
14,477 85 51 6,363 20,976
3,610 225 47 2,509 6,391
- - - (626) (626)

18,087 310 98 8,246 26,741
8,217 832 142 6,223 15,414




14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 14.
Financial assets SREE

Loan and receivables B R W ERIE
Amortised cost B SRR
Financial liabilities tRBEE
Amortised cost B SRR
CONTRACT ASSETS 15.
Contract assets ABHEE

Less: allowance for credit losses

The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the
application of HKFRS 9 and 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because
the rights are conditioned on factors other than passage
of time. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

As at 31 December 2018, included in carrying amount
of contract assets comprises retention money held by
customers for construction work amounted to approximately
HK$25,081,000, of which approximately HK$14,163,000,
is unsecured, interest-free and expected to be recovered
or settled in more than twelve months from the end of
reporting period.

B EREERE

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

RERNESz2EMIA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
- 110,327
101,520 =
17,375 19,036
BREE
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
—B-N\fF T \#F
T=EEr=E —H—8*
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
29,560 22,220
(165) (149)
29,395 22,071

& AW 2 BRI M BV BRI T B R FE 9 R E 165G A

BREETBZEASEMRE A MALAKRENTIER
BRBRFE R - B A% SENBORD R & R 2
SRR - BERMKBERGR  aNEEBBEEES
JE WA -

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H AYEEFEEELEER
FREETIREABANRES 425,081,000/ T @ EF
#914,163,0007 7o Ty K - £ B W EAR | E B R 8
T+ =B A EUREI S E LT o

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

16. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses
Less: progress billings received and receivables

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for credit losses

Retention receivables*
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Less: allowance for credit losses

16. EWEFAHNIRENE

2018 2017
—B-N\fF —B—tf
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT

B E 4G KR A DA HE 0% F)30 R
KRERE 18 - 169,263
B B U TR S FRIB - (161,612
= 7,651

17. EZREMEWKRFIE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
2 5 W skIE 61,396 40,094
B EEEBRE (659) =
60,737 40,094
JEYURE £ * - 18,264
Hib W RIE - s RIB A 5,075 6,743
B EEEBRE (115) -
4,960 25,007
65,697 65,101

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

* Upon application of HKFRS 15, the retention receivables were
reclassified to contract assets.

RIEH BB B EERFE 165 1&  ERRE2 7 E 24
FEMEBE -

BFRPZEERATAETR  — Kb ERZFFEAEEERG
o AEE RS T60HAZEEE - WEMB A EUKKE

Notes: Kt -

(@) The credit terms granted to customers are varied and are ()
generally the result of negotiations between individual customers
and the Group. The Group generally allows a credit period of W ELHE, o
within 60 days. No interest is charged on overdue receivables.

(b) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for (b)

credit losses based on invoice date are as follows:

RIB R B HRER AN E S E KA R EEBRRE) Wk
oMM

2018 2017

—B-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

0 - 30 days 0ZE30H 24,575 18,776
31 - 60 days 31E60H 20,798 8,207
61 -90 days 61E90H 4,131 8,990
91 - 365 days 91%365H 7,411 8,496
Over 365 days 365 A £ 3,822 625
60,737 40,094

Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

©)

(continued)

Trade receivables of approximately HK$ 23,509,000 as at 31
December 2017 were past due but not impaired. These related
to trade receivables from a number of independent customers of
whom there is no recent history of default and no provision for
impairment had therefore been made. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

Overdue by:
1-30 days
31 - 60 days
61 -90 days
Over 90 days
Over 365 days

Starting from 1 January 2018, the Group applies the simplified
approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, these receivables have been grouped based on
same credit risk characteristics.

See note 3.1 for further information about expected credit loss
provision.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$31,378,000 which are past due and which
impairment loss had not been provided for to be of good credit
quality and they are expected to be recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. Include in the
past due balance of approximately HK$9,501,000 has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default based
on good repayment records for those debtors and continuous
business with the Group.

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE—_T—\F+_A=+—HIFE

17. EZRHEMEWRE (F)

Wit - (&)

®)

B
1%230H
31ZE60H
61%E90H
90R M E
365 A A E

()

R-Z—tF+=-A=+—H  BHEKHKIAL 23,509,000
TTEAHMEARRE © b FHIRR S 2 W T R LSRR B
FEPNEZEKFURER - FI Y& HRERE - AREL
BRI R HER o

2017
T+
HK$'000
FHExT

7,067
8,428
2,045
5,361

608

23,509

B2 \F—A B ARERABHLDERBEUBE
HEAFIRRENRRPERBAMIZRME  ZEMAEFRE
SEWFORE A2 RBEREEERRE - At BBRAEEER -
ZERBFRDREEREERR R DS

FHEHEEBRRBNE—SER  F2HMES -

R-ZE—\F+-A=+—H8 5B EZREFEEHRBE
AR TE B 49 73.31,878,00078 7T M) & IR IR » % B MR FA S 8

AYERESRRERAARIFEEEE B EBHA THRD -
ANER B B % F A RS B (R R o S HI A #5249 9,601,000

BTEBHORARN L BERARZTREFIANRITE
FRACER R AR AR B AR R M O R T DARAR B HER AT K o

SEHEEZERERAT T /\FEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HZE—Z—\F+_A=+—HIFE

18.

19.

20.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CBEARTERRRERAESEY

2018 2017

—F-NF —B—tf

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHT FHBT

Pledged bank deposits (Note) EHERRITER () 10,106 10,014
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEYD 26,464 36,404
36,570 46,418

Note:

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank deposit of approximately
HK$10,106,000 (2017: HK$10,014,000) was pledged as collateral for
Group’s banking facilities. The interest rate on pledged bank deposit
was approximately 1.82% (2017: 0.55%) per annum. This deposit has a
maturity of three months.

RZFB-N\F+ZA=+—8H - KAEENRITEFRA 10,106,000 7T (=
T—+F 10,014,000/ 7T) ERFIEAXEEBITRENEER - B
KIFRITERNENRLYH1.82% (ZF—+H4F : 0.55%) ° IiFREN
FEBMAR=M@A -

SHARE CAPITAL [
Number of
ordinary shares Share capital
ZEREE B
HK$’000
FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HREMEO0.01 BT EimAR
Authorised: ERE
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018 R=ZT—tER=_F—N\F
+—-—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREE :
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018 R_ZE—+t&ER-_FT—N\FE+_A
=—F8 672,000,000 6,720
RESERVES fEfE
Share premium 17 E

Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at
a premium, less expenses incurred in connection with the
issue of the shares.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the reserve arose pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation for the purpose of the listing of the
Company’s shares on the HKEX.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Pt )i B 15 120 (B 3 17 © MR PR S R IR B AR X Bl i o
BENER  MBRBETROAMEENFX

BB
EUHREBERRRATBRNNER A LT RIEEXEHEN
EENRHE -



21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 22 November
2016 as to attract and retain the best available personnel
and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants
under the Scheme.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company may
at their absolute discretion and subject to the terms of
the Scheme, grant options to any employees (full-time or
part-time), directors, consultants or advisors, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The eligibility of any participants to
the grant of any options shall be determined by the directors
from time to time on the basis of the directors’ opinion as
to their contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.

The aggregate number of the Company’s shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme or any other
share options schemes of the Company if this will result in
the limit being exceeded. The maximum number of shares
issuable upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company as from the adoption date must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the shares in issue upon the date on
which the shares are listed and permitted to be dealt in the
Stock Exchange. The 10% limit may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the Company’s shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of the Company’s
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
refreshed limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue. Where any further
grant of options to a participant under the Scheme would
result in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting.

e R RAR M
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21.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee).
Where any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective close associates
would result in the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue and having an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company, with
voting to be taken by way of poll.

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted in
writing within 7 days from the date of the offer. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the directors may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option with a remittance in favour of the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer
(which shall not be later than 7 days from the date of the
offer).

The subscription price shall be a price solely determined
by the board of directors of the Company and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the
average closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the offer date.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on 22 November 2016, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

No share options were granted since the adoption of the

Scheme and there were no share option outstanding as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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DEFERRED TAXATION 22, RIEFIE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in REEELRE P IIRR R AR AR TR IE 8 &84 26
the consolidated statement of financial position and the DREFHMT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Accelerated

ECL tax
provision depreciation Total
EHEE
BiIEBE MEHERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT T
At 1 January 2017 RZT—tF—HF—H - 816 816
Charged to profit or loss (Note 10) MBI (FE10) - 804 804
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A=+—H = 1,620 1,620
Effect of initial application of HKFRS 9 ¥ ERE B HRE LR
FORMTE (110) - (110)
At 1 January 2018 W-Z—N\E—A—H (110) 1,620 1,510
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) Az (FFEE10) @) (210) 212)
At 31 December 2018 R=-B-—NE+=-A=+—8 (112) (1,410) 1,298
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EZRHEMESKIE
2018 2017
—E2-NF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade payables 2 5 SR8 10,629 11,514
Accruals and other payables FE AT R B A FE A 3B 6,724 7,500
17,353 19,014
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice RIFEZHHNE ZEMNFTIBRETET :
date is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
0 - 30 days 0&30H 4,599 4,737
31 - 60 days 31260H 934 2,821
61 — 90 days 61290 H 1,025 771
Over 90 days 90 A £ 4,071 3,185
10,629 11,514
Trade payables are non-interest bearing. B O RNFIBTE R o

SBREEEZERAERAR 2 \FEERS 119
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24.

25.

26.

Kingland Group Holdings Limited

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 24, ENESFE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, non-interest BNESRIEAEERR T BXWEREKEE -
bearing and repayable on demand.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. FEBRLRERMHT
CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash BRETB EAEKEELENBESFENYER
generated from operations
2018 2017
—E-N\E —+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Profit before income tax B FT1S B4 Al & A 23,741 30,439
Adjustments for: BT SEAE :
Depreciation e 6,391 4,436
Gain on disposed of property, HEWE BB K& ERE
plant and equipment (390) (39)
Other non-current liabilities Hi3EnEasE 35 (47)
Net impairment losses on financial assets and PREERGHNEENRE
contract assets B85 58 207 =
Interest expense B X - 104
Interest income FBEWKA (206) (14)
Operating profit before working capital changes 438 & & & B) 5 48 & 3% 7l 29,778 34,879
Increase in contract assets BHEEL N (7,340) =
Decrease in amounts due from customers FEW R E A 4 TR IER
for contract work - 2,314
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 N H U 5K IEE N (19,564) (22,886)
Decrease in amounts due to customers EREFELHIRFKERD
for contract work - (212)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 N H M A 5RIER A (1,661) (7,354)
Net cash generated from operations REEENRESTFE 1,213 6,741
COMMITMENTS 26. FRIE
(a) Capital commitments (@) EREE

Capital commitments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period not provided for in the consolidated

financial statements were as follow.

Contracted but not provided for:
— Property, plant and equipment

R ¥RE BR i AR
EEWT :

RAPBRRBEOREZEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
EEEEIDE L=
—E - BEREE - 2,826

Annual Report 2018
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26. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 26. &I ()

(b) Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee (b) REHESRE-FEEEREREA
At the end of the reporting period, the total future RIER - BEBETATHELEHERRENAI &
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable EREENRETENT :
operating leases were payable as follows:

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Not later than 1 year VR—F 3,036 3,012
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years  —FRNERF 344 1,381
3,380 4,393
The Group is the lessee in respect of properties AEBARKEHETYX(BENAEZENME  BFE
including office premises, warehouse and directors’ REEEF)NEABA ZSEHEBRFTVLHEBA
quarters under operating leases. The leases typically ME=F - ZEFHEXTERREXAES -
run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years. The leases do
not include contingent rentals.
27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BEIRZS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to BIE T Bk 5 A AL N2 - B S 12 il SUTE 1R M BT 75 s AR

control, jointly control or exert significant influence over the ERREEHEMATEEAZEZNNAL - WEBRER

other party in making financial or operational decisions. HREEHI AR AR ABER - BER AR

Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject A EMEE -

to common control or joint control. Related parties may be

individuals or other entities.

(@)  Apart from disclosures elsewhere and in note 24 to @ BREfbi T RERE M RK M FE24 B9 H BRI - K
the consolidated financial statements, the Group did EERFATEEAEEETNERBEIRS °
not have any significant related party transaction with
related parties during the year.

(o) The emoluments of the directors and senior b)) EFREREEABEBEIEEERAB)RFAMN
executives (representing the key management T :
personnel) during the year are as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FHIT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits o o BB REAEF 8,523 8,719
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RIKEFET B R 126 126
8,649 8,845
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28. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28. HAEE
The Group, in the ordinary course of its business, is involved AEBRABEKBET SR TREENSERE FA -
in various claims, suits, investigations, and legal proceedings FAEREEREF BEASEUTNEHREMNZEEREF
that arise from time to time. Although the Group does not Nk (ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ‘]i t[E]) Y HM AR R R EEE
expect that the outcome in any of these legal proceedings, BRERERTHR L  HFARNSHIATE) B'J ES]T AN
individually or collectively, will have a material adverse effect FEIEBBELARAFT L REMAE  MAl e HE
on its financial position or results of operations, litigation is —HENEEEES RS REBRN T E

inherently unpredictable. Therefore, the Group could incur
judgements or enter into settlements of claims that could
adversely affect its operating results or cash flows in a
particular period.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at the end REERBERREBERNKAGE
of the reporting period.
29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 20, ARTFUBRRERRFEEES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position (@) MHEMRRE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB RRZIEE 8 8
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TEFFRB 242 575
Amounts due from subsidiaries [ CIEPNGIE e 52,237 35,420
Cash and cash equivalents HekRe vff ) 2,325 20,153
54,804 56,148
Total assets EEHE 54,812 56,156
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital [N 6,720 6,720
Reserves &t 41,432 43,301
Total equity B 48,152 50,021
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables “r&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁi 757 232
Amount due to a subsidiary ﬁ ~F—FEK B A A5k IE 5,903 5,903
Total liabilities EEHAE 6,660 6,135
Total equity and liabilities EEREaEERE 54,812 56,156
Net current assets RBEEZFE 48,144 50,013
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRARSEE 48,152 50,021
The Company’s statement of financial position were KRABRERRARER _E—NF=ZA-_TNLBE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of EETSHERIFETNE YHTIIESRERES
directors on 29 March 2019 and signed on its behalf
by:
Cheung Shek On Chan Yuk Shing
RBR BRERK
Director Director
Ex EE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 29. AQATFUBEMRRRRFEHEEE (F)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Reserve movement

Balance as at 1 January 2017
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2017

Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2018

(b) FHERD
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R E 28R Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
RZE—tF— A —B8&ERR 44,658 (344) 44,314
FAEEREERAS L
- (1,013) (1,013)
RZTE—+F+_A=+—HH
wEeh 44,658 (1,357) 43,301
FRNEEREHEARZLE
- (1,869) (1,869)
R=F—N\F+=A
=+—BAmER 44,658 (3,226) 41,432
SHEEERERAT —ZE—N\FEERSE
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Financial Summary
B A E

RESULTS ]

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group Rt e CERRAVERERERBRERZASEBERBER [N
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited HEENEEUREERBERESIINT -
consolidated financial statements and the Prospectus is set out

below.
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\NFE —E—+F ZE—RF —ZT—HF ZT—NNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT FHT FHET
Revenue & 147,413 186,168 125,671 120,072 117,129
Profit attributable to owners RRBHEB AR
of the Company 20,183 25,023 3,560 14,197 9,129
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
At 31 December
BR+=-—BA=+-—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-NF —T—tF ZT—RF ZT—HF ZT—HEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FAT FHET
Total assets BEHE 147,688 134,190 123,605 71,654 39,475
Total liabilities BEMBE (19,924) (22,909) (37,347) (31,401) (25,625)
Total equity e AR 127,764 111,281 86,258 40,253 13,850
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